Public Document Pack

Meeting of:
Date:
Time:
Venue:

Planning and Licensing Committee
Thursday, 5th November, 2020
6.00 pm.
Zoom

This agenda gives notice of items to be considered in private as required by
Regulations 5 (4) and (5) of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements)
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012.
Item
No.
1

AGENDA

Page No

Apologies
To receive any apologies for absence.

2

Declarations of Interest
Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal
or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of
those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.

3

Minutes
To consider the Minutes of the meetings of the Planning and Licensing
Committee held 1st October 2020 and 13th October 2020

4

Urgent Items of Business
To determine whether there are any additional items of business
which, by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should
be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency.

5

Items for Exclusion of Public and Press
To determine any items on the agenda, if any, where the public are to
be excluded from the meeting.

4-7

6

Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026

8 - 62

To consider the Authority’s Statement of Licensing Policy 2021 – 2026
and to make appropriate recommendations to Full Council thereon.
7

5 Market Place, Middleton

63 - 72

Change of use from financial and professional services (A2) to
nightclub (Sui Generis).
8

Planning Appeals
To note the following appeals:
a.
115 Spotland Road, Rochdale
b.
New Birtle Farm, Birtle Road, Birtle, Bury
c.
383 Albert Royds Street, Rochdale
d.
663 Oldham Road, Rochdale
e.
Lidl Store, Littlebrorough (to be circulated)
f.
173 Rooley Moor Road, Rochdale
g.
776 Manchester Road, Castleton
Site visits
It has been agreed with the Chair of the Planning and Licensing
Committee that, in view of the current COVID-19 guidance specific to
Rochdale, there will be no site visits for the agenda items.
Members are free to view the application sites from public vantage
points without entering private property, and are encouraged to make
use of Google Earth and Google Streetview prior to the meeting.
The above guidance is reflected on page 15 of the PAS document:
“Probity in planning for councillors and officers”
https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/probity-planningcouncill-d92.pdf

73 - 80

Planning and Licensing Committee Members
Councillor Shakil Ahmed (Chair)
Councillor Phil Burke (Vice Chair)
Councillor Irene Davidson
Councillor Susan Emmott
Councillor Rachel Massey
Councillor Amna Mir
Councillor Shaun O'Neill
Councillor Faisal Rana
Councillor Aasim Rashid
Councillor Peter Rush
Councillor John Taylor
Councillor Shah Wazir
Councillor Peter Winkler
Councillor Sameena Zaheer
Councillor Mohammed Zaman
For more information about this meeting, please contact
Peter Thompson
Committees and Constitutional Services
Rochdale Borough Council
Telephone – 01706 924715
e-mail – peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk

Agenda Item 3
PLANNING AND LICENSING COMMITTEE
MINUTES OF MEETING
Thursday, 1st October 2020
PRESENT: Councillor Shakil Ahmed (in the Chair); Councillors Burke,
Davidson, Massey, Mir, O’Neill, Rana, Rashid, Rush, Taylor, Wazir, Winkler,
Zaheer and Zaman.
OFFICERS: E. Heron (Economy Directorate), J. Gillighan (Neighbourhoods
Directorate), L. Adams, J. Holmes, Z. Latif and P. Thompson (Resources
Directorate)
18

APOLOGIES
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Susan Emmott.

19

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Councillor Burke declared a personal interest in submitted planning
application 20/00912/OUT – ‘Land to the east of Heywood Old Road,
Middleton’.
Councillor Massey declared a personal interest in submitted planning
application 20/00912/OUT - ‘Land to the east of Heywood Old Road,
Middleton’.

20

MINUTES
Resolved:
That the Minutes of the meeting of the Planning and Licensing Committee
held 6th August 2020 be approved, as a correct record.

21

17 CHESTER AVENUE, ROCHDALE
Resolved:
That determination of this planning application be deferred to the next meeting
of the Planning and Licensing Committee.

22

LAND TO THE EAST OF HEYWOOD OLD ROAD, MIDDLETON
Resolved:
That determination of this planning application be deferred to the next meeting
of the Planning and Licensing Committee.

23

ADOPTION OF REVISED LOCAL LIST FOR VALIDATION OF PLANNING
APPLICATIONS
The Planning and Licensing Committee considered a report of the Head of
Planning which advised that the Local Planning Authority benefited from
powers to require that planning applications are accompanied by such
information as it considers necessary; such information must be set out in an
adopted Local List. At the Planning and Licensing Committee meeting held 9 th
July 2020, the Committee approved the recommendation to consult on the
new Local List, which was reflective of current requirements, meeting the

Page 4

various relevant statutory tests and which would provide clear guidance to
prospective applicants.
A public consultation exercise was carried out, in accordance with best
practice guidance, and the final version of the Local List was submitted to the
Committee for adoption following a review of the consultation responses
received and, where appropriate, incorporation of such feedback.
The Council’s current Local List was out of date; the absence of a current and
technically effective list potentially exposes the Local Planning Authority to
increased risk of challenge on validation requirements, could lead to delays in
the process of validating planning applications and could also result in a lack
of clarity for users of the Development Management service.
National Planning Practice Guidance advises that a Local Planning Authority
may request supporting information with a planning application. Its
requirements should be specified on a formally adopted ‘local list’ which has
been published on its website less than two years before an application is
submitted.
Resolved:
1. The Committee notes the representations and officers’ responses to
representations received, following consultation, and the proposed
changes to the Local List.
2. The Committee approves the adoption of the revised Local List.
24

PLANNING APPEALS
The Head of Planning submitted a report which detailed planning applications,
listed below, that had recently been determined by the Planning Inspectorate.
a.
b.
c.
d.
e.
f.
g.

202 Queensway, Rochdale
12 Whitfield Crescent, Newhey, Rochdale
7 Weythorne Drive, Heywood
23 Tarnside Close, Smallbridge, Rochdale
Carpark, Eastgate Street, Rochdale
Dane Street, Rochdale
144 Whitworth Road, Rochdale

Resolved:
That the report be noted.

Page 5

PLANNING AND LICENSING COMMITTEE
MINUTES OF MEETING
Tuesday, 13th October 2020
PRESENT: Councillor Shakil Ahmed (in the Chair); Councillors Burke,
Davidson, Massey, Mir, O’Neill, Rana, Rashid, Rush, Taylor, Wazir, Winkler,
Zaheer and Zaman.
OFFICERS: P. Moore (Head of Planning), S. Syeda (Economy Directorate),
C. Woods (Neighbourhoods Directorate), L. Adams, J. Holmes, Z. Latif and
P. Thompson (Resources Directorate)
ALSO IN ATTENDANCE: Councillor Angela Smith, Councillor Susan Smith,
F. Davies (Children’s Services) and five members of the public.
25
APOLOGIES
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Susan Emmott.
26
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Councillor Burke declared a personal interest in submitted planning
application 20/00912/OUT – ‘Land to the east of Heywood Old Road,
Middleton’.
Councillor Massey declared a personal interest in submitted planning
application 20/00912/OUT - ‘Land to the east of Heywood Old Road,
Middleton’.
27
17 CHESTER AVENUE, ROCHDALE
The Head of Planning presented submitted planning application
20/00934/HOUS, for a two storey and single storey rear extension, including
alterations to side elevations following demolition of existing conservatory and
outbuildings - resubmission of 20/00332/HOUS.
The Committee received representations from Mr. J. Wardle who addressed
Members on behalf of the objectors to the planning application.
The Committee received representations from Mr. N. Anjum, the applicant,
who addressed Members in support of the application.
The Committee was addressed by Councillor Angela Smith, a Bamford Ward
Member, in which Ward the proposed development was located.
Resolved:
That planning permission be granted, subject to the conditions detailed within
the submitted report and to an additional condition stipulating that, with regard
to the installation of a first floor window on the southwest facing side elevation,
that it be non-opening windows and be of obscured glazing.

Page 6

28
LAND TO THE EAST OF HEYWOOD OLD ROAD, MIDDLETON
Prior to the consideration of this planning application, the Planning Solicitor
addressed the Committee with regard to correspondence received on the day
of this meeting, from an objector. The correspondence amplified concerns that
the objector had about the consultation which the Council’s Planning Service
had undertaken in respect of this application and therefore requested that the
Committee further defer consideration of the application. The objector had
also indicated they would be making a formal complaint. The Planning
Solicitor advised that there were insufficient grounds to warrant a further
deferment.
The Planning Solicitor also noted that at Minute 26, above, Councillors
Massey and Burke had declared personal interests in this planning
application. He requested that, in the interests of openness and transparency,
the two Members reiterate their earlier intention to declare a personal interest
in this matter and that they would both be able to consider the application with
an open mind. In this regard Councillors Massey and Burke both reiterated
their earlier declaration of interest and their intention to consider this planning
application with an open mind.
The Head of Planning presented submitted planning application
20/00912/OUT, an outline planning application for new secondary school
development and associated parking, sports provision and landscaping (with
details of access provided, and all other matters reserved), on land to the east
of Heywood Old Road, Middleton.
The Senior Planning Officer updated the Committee with regard to drainage
and ecological issues and also on the reason for the proposed imposition of
Condition 28, if the Committee would be minded to approve the application.
The Senior Planning Officer verbally updated the Committee regarding the
proposed imposition of a further matter which would secure the sports
facilities, detailed in the report, for community use by way of a condition. If
approved this would be delegated to the Head of Planning to determine in
consultation with the Council’s Legal Services.
The Committee received representations from Ms. J. Jones and Mr. C. O’Neill
who addressed Members on behalf of the objectors to the application.
The Committee received representations from Dr F. Davies (Rochdale
Borough Council’s School Place Planning Manager) and Ms. A. Hargreaves
(Department for Education), on behalf of the applicant, who both spoke in
support of the application.
The Committee was addressed by Councillor Susan Smith, a West Middleton
Ward Member, in which Ward the proposed development was located.
Resolved:
That planning permission be granted subject to the Conditions detailed in the
Head of Planning’s report and to the additional conditions detailed in the
Senior Planning Officer’s verbal update, as reported above.

Page 7

Agenda Item 6
Report to Planning and Licensing Committee
Date of Meeting
Portfolio
Report Author
Public Document

5th November 2020
Cabinet Member for
Health & Wellbeing
Nicola Rogers

Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026
Executive Summary
1.

1.1 The Council has to determine and publish a Statement of Licensing Policy
every 5 years in order to meets its statutory obligations. The determination and
publishing of such is required to be undertaken by January 2021.
1.2 The purpose of the policy statement is to define how the responsibilities
under the Licensing Act 2003 are going to be exercised and administered.
1.3 To report on the consultation responses received on the Council’s draft
Statement of Licensing Policy and seek agreement from members on
amendments where necessary and to recommend adoption of the policy to full
Council.

Recommendation
2.

2.1 Members are recommended to consider the responses of the consultation
process and;
2.2 Agree the proposed changes and;
2.3 Approve that the amended Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026 be
adopted by cabinet and Council.

Reason for Recommendation
3.

Councils have a statutory duty to prepare and publish a statement of principles
that they propose to apply in exercising their functions under the Licensing Act
2003. This is valid for a five year period and therefore the Council is require to
review its policy statement every five years to meet its statutory requirements
and adopt and publish a statement of Licensing Policy. The existing statement
was effective from 31 January 2016.

Page 8

Key Points for Consideration
4.

4.1 The existing statement of Licensing Policy has been reviewed and
updated. The changes, by way of additional / revised content to the draft
policy, are highlighted in red.
4.2 In order to comply with statutory requirements, the Council has consulted
with the Responsible Authorities under the Act, national bodies,
representatives of licensees, residents and with representatives of
businesses. A list of consultees forms part of the draft statement of licensing
policy.
4.3 The consultation period was from 20 July 2020 and ended on 11
September 2020.
4.4 A total of 1 response was received, the contents of which have been duly
considered.
4.5 The amended draft statement of licensing policy is detailed in Appendix 1.
4.6 The detail of the consultation response and the response to such is
detailed in Appendix 2.
Alternatives Considered
4.7 None; it is a statutory duty for all Council’s to determine and publish its
statement of Licensing Policy and there is no alternative option to this.
Costs and Budget Summary

5.

There are no financial implications.

Risk and Policy Implications
6.

6.1 The Licensing Act 2003 established a single integrated system for
licensing premises that are used for alcohol, entertainment and late night
refreshment. Under this legislation, each local authority is known as the
‘licensing authority’ and is responsible for licensing alcohol, entertainment and
late night refreshment in its geographical area.
6.2 When preparing its licensing policy, the Council is required to have regard
to the following:


Promoting the 4 licensing objectives, namely: (a) the prevention of
crime and disorder; (b) public safety; (c) the prevention of public
nuisance; and (d) the protection of children from harm;

Page 9



Statutory guidance issued by the Secretary of State; and



The 2003 Act.

The draft updated policy has been drafted taking these into account.
6.3 There are no legal implications other than the statutory duty already
identified in the report.
6.4 There are no personnel implications.
Consultation
7.

As stated in paragraphs 4.2 to 4.6 above.

Background Papers
8.

Place of Inspection

None

For Further Information Contact:

Nicola Rogers, Tel: 01706 924124,
nicola.rogers@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 10

DRAFT Statement of
Licensing Policy
2021-2026
Licensing Act 2003

Page 11

DRAFT Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026

Document Control
Document Title: Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026 –
Licensing Act 2003
Summary
Publication Date

January 2021

Related Legislation / Applicable Section
of Legislation

Licensing Act 2003

Related Policies, Strategies, Guideline
Documents

Statement of Licensing Policy

Replaces

Statement of Licensing Policy 2016-2021

Joint Policy (Yes/No)

No

Name of Partner(s) if joint
Policy Owner (Name/Position)

Nicola Rogers (Head of Public Protection)

Policy Author (Name/Position)

Jahangir Alom (Licensing Operational Manager)

Applies to

Licensing Act 2003

Review of Strategy
Last Review Date

January 2021

Review undertaken by

Jahangir Alom

Next Review Date

31 January 2026

Document Approvals
This document requires the following approvals.
Name

rochdale.gov.uk

Title

Date of Issue

Page 12

Version Number

1

DRAFT Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026

STATEMENT OF POLICY
Under Section 5 of the Licensing Act 2003
Contents
Item
1. Glossary
Background
2. Introduction
3. Overview of this Policy
4. Consultation on this Policy
5. The Integration of Policies / Strategic Links
6. Tackling Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE)
7. Authority Profile
8. Scope / Context of the Policy and Operating Schedules
9. Licensable Activities

Page
3
6
7
7
8
8
9
9
12

Licensing Objectives
10. Licensing Objectives – Prevention of Crime & Disorder
11. Licensing Objectives – Promoting Public Safety
12. Licensing Objectives – Prevention of Public Nuisance
13. Licensing Objectives – Protection of Children from Harm

14
19
20
25

Other Important Information
14. Planning & Licensing
15. Provisional Statements
16. Compliance and Enforcement
17. Conditions
18. Special Occasions
19. Premises Licences
20. Club Premises Certificates
21. Temporary Events notices (TENS)
22. Late Night Levy
23. Early Morning Restriction Orders
24. Suspension of Premises Licences/Club Premises Certificates
25. Personal Licences
26. Adult Entertainment
27. Alcohol Delivery Services
28. Large Scale Events
29. Tables and Chairs on the Highway
30. Film Classifications
31. Counter Terrorism
32. Public Health
33. The Licensing Process

28
28
28
29
29
29
29
30
31
31
31
32
32
32
33
35
35
36
36
37

Appendices
Appendix A – Consultees & Responsible Authorities
Appendix B – Exercise & Delegation of Functions
Appendix C – Statutory Qualifying Conditions for Clubs
Appendix D – The Hypnotism Act 1952: Conditions

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 13

39-42
43-44
45-47
48

2

DRAFT Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026

1.

GLOSSARY

1.1

Act
The Licensing Act 2003 as amended.

1.2

Applicant – within the statement of licensing policy may mean applicant, licence holder, club
premises certificate holder as appropriate

1.3

Designated premises supervisor/DPS
Designated person with day to day control in premises that sell alcohol (specified on
the
Premises Licence)
NB there is no requirement for a DPS in premises operated through a club premises certificate

1.4

Other Persons - ‘Interested Parties’
 persons who live, or are involved in a business, in the relevant licensing authority’s area;
 a member of the relevant licensing authority.

1.5

Licensing Authority (the Authority)
Rochdale Borough Council.

1.6

Licensing Objectives
Licensing Authority must carry out its functions under the Licensing Act 2003 with a view to
promoting the licensing objectives:
a) The prevention of crime and disorder
b) Public safety
c) The prevention of public nuisance and
d) The protection of children from harm.

1.7

The Licensing Register
The Licensing Register contains details of all Premises Licences and Club Premises
Certificates. The register is available online at:
http://licensing.rochdale.gov.uk/1/WcaHome

1.8

Operating schedule
Document prepared by an applicant as an essential part of the application. It will detail the
licensable activities to be carried out at the premises, the hours of operation which may be different
for different activities, the steps to be taken to support the licensing objectives and where alcohol is
sold details of the designated premises supervisor.

1.9

Relevant Representations
There are various types of applications that can be made under the Act, and in most cases
representations are invited in relation to them. However, to be considered by an Authority they must
be ‘relevant representations’ as defined by the Act.
A ‘relevant representation’ is one that is made in writing and:
 is about the likely effect of the licence on the promotion of the licensing objectives;
 has been made by a responsible authority, or other person as defined by the
Act, within the relevant time period as prescribed by regulation;
 has not been withdrawn; and

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 14

3

DRAFT Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026


has not been determined by the Licensing Authority as frivolous or vexatious or repetitious.

1.10

Responsible Authorities – bodies defined within the Act as detailed at Appendix A.

1.11

Secretary of State’s Guidance
Guidance issued under Section 182 of the Act. To which the Licensing Authority must
regard in discharging its duties.

1.12

The Policy
The Statement of Licensing Policy as produced by Rochdale Borough Council
Authority.

1.13

Appendices
A) Consultees and Responsible Authorities
B) Exercise and Delegation of Functions
C) Statutory Qualifying Conditions for Clubs
D) The Hypnotism Act 1952: Conditions

1.14

Consultees
A list of consultees can be found at Appendix A.

have

Licensing

Further details about the licensing and application process, including application forms and/or any
related licensing matter, can be obtained from:
Rochdale Borough Council
Licensing Service
Number One Riverside
Smith Street
Rochdale
OL16 1XU
Telephone: 01706 924114
Email: licensing.reg@rochdale.gov.uk
Website: www.rochdale.gov.uk
1.15

Useful web links
http://licensing.rochdale.gov.uk/1/WcaHome - Rochdale Council’s Licensing Authority Public
Register
www.rochdale.gov.uk – Rochdale Borough Council website
www.gov.uk – contains the Licensing Act 2003 and associated regulations

1.17

Please Note: Whilst this policy endeavours to reflect the legal requirements of the Licensing Act
2003, the Act rather than the Policy will be the definitive reference source for such requirements.

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 15

4

DRAFT Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026

Background

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 16

5

DRAFT Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026
2.0

INTRODUCTION

2.1

Rochdale Borough Council is the Licensing Authority for the Metropolitan area of Rochdale under
the provisions of the Act and is responsible for the regulation of licensing matters within the
borough.

2.2

The Act requires the Council to produce a Statement of Licensing Policy every 5 years. This policy
was published on XXXXX and will be due for review no later than 31 January 2026. It can be
reviewed at any time during the 5 year period, with any changes being subject to statutory
consultation.

2.3

The Policy is published under Section 5 of the Act and states how Rochdale Borough Council, as
the Licensing Authority, will exercise its licensing functions in order to promote the four Licensing
Objectives which are:





The prevention of crime and disorder;
The prevention of public nuisance;
Public safety; and
The protection of children from harm.

2.4

Each licensing objective is considered to be of equal importance within this Policy. They will be
considered in relation to matters centred on the premises or within the control of the licensee and
the effect if any, which the carrying on of that business has on the vicinity.

2.5

The Authority recognises that the entertainment/leisure industry is a major contributor to the
economy and cultural development of the Borough.

2.6

The Authority wishes to encourage licensees to provide a wide range of entertainment activities
within the Borough throughout their opening hours and to promote live music, dance, theatre etc.,
for the wider cultural benefit of the community, and will seek to monitor the effects of licensing on
these activities.

2.7

The Authority will endeavour to carry out its licensing functions in a way that ensures public safety,
supports well managed premises where licence holders display sensitivity to the potential impact of
activities on local residents and other businesses, and protects residents from detrimental effects.

2.8

The Authority will have regard to how littering and fouling, noise, street crime and the capacity of the
Authority’s infrastructure, resources and police resources impact on the licensing objectives.

2.9

In adopting this policy, the Authority recognises that each application will be considered on its
individual merits.

2.10

The Authority will work in partnership with the police, residents and all local businesses to promote
the licensing objectives, and to implement strategies to achieve them.

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 17

6

DRAFT Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026
3.0

OVERVIEW OF THIS POLICY

3.1

The overall aim of this policy is to actively promote the Licensing Objectives. It seeks to provide
information and guidance to applicants, responsible authorities and any person who may be affected
or interested in licensing matters. It clarifies the manner in which the Council will consider
applications and how it will approach matters relating to licensing. It will also set out what the
Licensing Authority expects of licence holders and how they can contribute to the promotion of the
Licensing Objectives

3.2

In preparing and publishing this policy, the guidance issued by the Secretary of State for the Home
Office under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 has been taken into account along with good
practice advice issued by approved government advisory bodies.

3.3

The policy has regard for the Council’s statutory responsibility under the Health and Social Care Act
2012 for the health of the population of Rochdale and notes that it is a public health priority to
reduce alcohol related harm.

3.4

The policy also takes into account the Council’s statutory duty under the Crime and Disorder Act
1998 to have regard to the need to do all that it reasonably can to prevent crime and disorder,
misuse of drugs and alcohol reoffending in the area.

3.5

The Licensing Authority will always have regard for its obligations under the Equality Act 2010, and
will ensure that the policy does not disproportionately impact any particular equality group.

3.6

The Licensing Authority has taken account of the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011,
the Live Music Act 2012 and the Deregulation Act 2015, which brought in legislative changes to the
Act which have been reflected in this Policy.

3.7

The Licensing Authority is committed to protecting children from harm and recognises how an
effective licensing regime can assist and inform other agencies in helping to tackle child sexual
exploitation (CSE).

4.0

CONSULTATION ON THIS POLICY

4.1

In accordance with Section 5(3) of the Act, the following were consulted in order to
finalise this policy:





4.2

The Chief Officer of Police in Rochdale;
The local Fire Authority;
Public Health Department Rochdale Borough Council
Such persons the Licensing Authority considers to be representative of holders of
Premises Licences in Rochdale;
 Such persons the Licensing Authority considers to be representative of holders of Club Premises
Certificates in Rochdale;
 Such persons the Licensing Authority considers to be representative of holders of Personal
Licences issued in Rochdale; and
 Such other persons the Licensing Authority considers to be representative of businesses and
residents in Rochdale.
A list of the consultees can be found at Appendix A.

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 18

7

DRAFT Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026
5.0

THE INTEGRATION OF POLICIES / STRATEGIC LINKS

5.1

Whilst the overall aim of this Policy is to promote the Licensing Objectives, it is recognised that there
are other key Council policies, Government and partnership agency policies in place, which also
contribute to the Council Plan. This Policy integrates as far as reasonably possible with those
strategies/policies, such as:













5.2

Crime and Disorder Reduction Strategy
Enforcement Concordat
Alcohol Harm Reduction Strategy
National Drug Strategy & Local treatment Plans
Safer Nightlife
LACORS/TSI Code of Practice on Test Purchasing
Culture and Tourism Strategies
Greater Manchester Local Transport Policy
Rochdale Unitary Development Plan and documents prepared as part of the Local Development
Framework
Rochdale Borough current Community Strategy
Rochdale Borough Local Neighbourhood Renewal Strategy
Rochdale Borough Economic Strategy

Licensing regulation also forms part of an overall strategy to address issues generated by licensed
premises. Licensing will work in partnership with other Council departments and agencies with a
view to promoting the Licensing Objectives. Other controls include:











Planning control;
Positive measures to create safe and attractive town and district centres;
Powers of the Council to designate public areas where the consumption of
alcohol is not permitted;
The confiscation of alcohol from adults and children in designated areas;
Police enforcement of disorder and anti-social behaviour;
Prosecution of personal licence holders and staff for selling alcohol to persons who are under
age or drunk;
Police powers to close down instantly any licensed premises on the grounds of disorder or
likelihood of disorder or excessive noise emanating from the premises;
Powers of the Council under the Environmental Protection Act and Health and Safety at Work
Act;
Power of a Responsible Authority, or other person to seek a review of a licence; and
Alcohol misuse and dependency/Reducing alcohol related harm

6.0

TACKLING CHILD SEXUAL EXPLOITATION (CSE)

6.1

The Licensing Authority is committed to protecting children from harm. It recognises that alcohol
use, misuse and abuse is one of the recurring key ‘parental factors’ in child protection and

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 19

8

DRAFT Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026
safeguarding, often contributing to parental neglect of children and domestic abuse and violence
within families.
6.2

Alcohol is also reported as a factor in CSE. Young people are encouraged or coerced into drinking
alcohol, leaving them vulnerable to perpetrators of CSE. Licensed premises have been implicated
nationally in the involvement with CSE, either taking place on the licensed premises or the premises
being used for the purposes of grooming and enticement.

6.3

The Licensing Authority will report any issues of concern regarding the safeguarding of children to
the appropriate safeguarding authorities and will act on any reports from them accordingly in relation
to the promotion of the Licensing Objectives. Where there are serious concerns and/or any criminal
investigations in relation to the abuse of children in connection with a licensed premises, serious
consideration will be given to lodging a review of the premises licence / certificate as it relates to the
negative impact on the Licensing Objectives and in particular crime and disorder and the protection
of children from harm.

6.4

The Licensing Authority expects licence holders and operators of licensed premises:




To understand that the sexual exploitation of a child is a criminal offence;
To ensure that they and their employees are fully aware of the signs of CSE and how to report it;
To report any concerns to the appropriate authorities or to the Licensing Authority who will then
flag up their concerns to the relevant safeguarding professionals on their behalf.

7.0

AUTHORITY PROFILE

7.1

The Authority is one of the 10 Metropolitan Districts of Greater Manchester.

7.2

Rochdale is a large market town in Greater Manchester. It lies amongst the foothills of the Pennines
on the River Roch, 5.3 miles north-northwest of Oldham, and 9.8 miles north-northeast of the city of
Manchester. The Borough of Rochdale has an approximately total population of 218,400 (ONS UK
Census 2017) people. It occupies an area of 16,100 hectares and is based on the townships of
Rochdale, Middleton, Heywood and Pennines.

7.3

The Authority currently licences:





482 Premises Licences with Alcohol
124 Premises Licences without Alcohol
52 Club Premises Certificates with the provision for Alcohol
2632 Personal Licence Holders

8.0

SCOPE / CONTEXT OF THE POLICY AND OPERATING SCHEDULES

8.1

Applications for new premises licences or variations need to be supported by an operating schedule.
The schedule must specify (amongst other things) the steps which the applicant proposes to
promote each of the Licensing Objectives.

8.2

If no relevant representation is made with regard to the application, the Authority must grant the
application as set out in the operating schedule, subject only to mandatory conditions under the Act.

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 20

9

DRAFT Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026
Steps proposed by the applicant within the operating schedule will become licence conditions. The
licensing authority will have no discretion to refuse the application or to alter or add to the conditions
arising from the operating schedule.
8.3

Where there are relevant representations, then a Licensing Sub-Committee Hearing will normally
follow. The Licensing Sub-Committee must, having regard to the representation and take such steps
as it considers appropriate to promote the Licensing Objectives. These may include refusing the
application, or adding to or modifying the conditions proposed in the operating schedule.

8.4

In exercising its discretion, the Licensing Sub-Committee will have regard (amongst other things) to
this Policy. In preparing their operating schedule, applicants are advised to read the Policy carefully.
Where an operating schedule complies with this Policy, it is generally less likely that a responsible
authority or other person will object to it. Compliance with this Policy is likely to assist the applicant
to avoid the delay and expense of a contested hearing and the risk of a refusal or the addition of
unwanted licence conditions.

8.5

This is not to say that an opposed application which complies with the Policy will necessarily be
granted or that an opposed application which does not comply with it will necessarily be refused.
Where there have been relevant representations, the Authority will always consider the merits of the
case for the promotion of the Licensing Objectives. Blanket or standard conditions will not be
applied without regard to the merits of the individual case.

8.6

The Policy represents the Authority’s view of the best means of securing the Licensing Objectives in
most normal cases. It has been drawn up in consultation with other expert bodies and responsible
authorities, together with community stakeholders. While the contents of the operating schedule are
a matter for the applicant, where there is objection to a schedule which departs from the Policy, the
Licensing Sub-Committee hearing an opposed application will normally expect to be given a good
reason for the departure if it is to be asked to make an exception to the Policy.

8.7

In this Policy, there are a number of references to the licensing Authority’s expectations of
applicants. As explained above, the Policy is only engaged where the Authority has a discretion
following the receipt of objections. In such cases, the Authority will not apply the policy rigidly, but
will always have regard to the merits of the case with a view to promoting the Licensing Objectives.

8.8

Further, the licensing authority may use this Policy when exercising other licensing functions. For
example, when considering an application for review of a licence, the Authority is likely to view with
concern premises which are being operated in clear breach of the terms of this Policy.

8.9

In undertaking its licensing functions, the Authority will be mindful of other legislation which may
impact on the promotion of the Licensing Objectives, for example:









Crime and Disorder Act 1998 in particular Section 17;
Environmental Protection Act 1990 (as amended);
Noise Act 1996;
The Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014;
Clean Neighbourhoods and Environment Act 2005 (including powers for the Local Authority to
issued fixed penalty notices to licensed premises emitting noise that exceeds the permitted level
between 11pm and 7am);
Violent Crime Reduction Act 2006;
Police and Crime Act 2009;

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 21

10

DRAFT Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026






Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011;
Health Act 2006;
European Union Services Directives;
Human Rights Act 1998;
Equality Act 2010

8.10

The Authority will not attempt to regulate matters that are provided for in other legislation through its
licensing functions. Duplication with other legislation and regulatory agencies will be avoided as far
as possible and conditions will only be attached to licences which are appropriate for the promotion
of the Licensing Objectives.

8.11

The Policy sets out a general approach to the making of licensing decisions that are compatible with
the Licensing Act 2003 and the associated guidance. It does not prevent any individual from making
any application and having it considered on its individual merits. Nor does it seek to override the
right of any person to make representations on an application or to seek a review where the Act
allows them to do so. When considering applications the Authority will take into account all relevant
representations, and the measures to support the licensing objectives taken by or proposed by the
applicant through the operating schedule. The Authority recognises that unless relevant
representations are received in respect of an application there is no provision for the Licensing
Authority, to refuse an application or impose conditions on a licence other than those proposed
within the application.

8.12

The Policy is integral in managing the role licensed premises play throughout the
Borough. A key aim of the Policy is to ensure that licensed premises have a positive impact on their
locality. The Authority is aware of the need to avoid the imposition of conditions and other controls,
which could deter some forms of live entertainment. Only proportionate and reasonable controls that
are appropriate for the promotion of the Licensing Objectives will be considered.

8.13

The Policy aims to strike a balance between the safety and amenity of residents, visitors,
businesses and those working or engaged in normal activity in and around the Borough. It seeks to
support the Borough as a desirable destination for the widest range of user groups. In embracing a
vision for the development of a successful and vibrant night time and evening economies, it will
encourage an entertainment and cultural offer with a diverse range of activity rather than premises
focused mainly or exclusively on the sale of alcohol. The Policy and seeks to support the philosophy
of Purple Flag.

8.14

The Policy cannot detail every factor that influences the achievement of the Licensing
Objectives nor can it detail all the control measures that may be appropriate. Individual applicants
and licence holders must consider the licensing objectives and control measures with regard to the
particular nature of their business. Additional opportunities for licensable activities must be matched
by appropriate and proportional measures to support the Licensing Objectives.

8.15

The Policy is designed to deal with matters within the control of the licence/club certificate holder on
and in the vicinity of their premises. It is not a mechanism for the general control of anti-social
behaviour by individuals once they are beyond the direct control of the licensee or licensed
premises.

8.16

Whilst the policy is prepared for the Authority’s area it will also take account of the position in
adjoining Authorities where common boundaries are relevant in licensing terms.

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 22

11

DRAFT Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026
8.17

In some cases additional licences may be required under separate legislation, for
example, sexual entertainment venue licences etc.

8.18

The Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 and the Health and Social Care Act 2012,
amends the 2003 Act so as to include a Local Authority’s ‘Public Health’ department as a
responsible Authority. As a responsible authority, the Public Health department can make
representations in relation to applications for the grant, variation, minor variation or review of
premises licences and club premises certificates; in addition, public health may themselves seek a
review of a premises licence. Any representation must be specific to the premises and cannot be a
general objection. Representations should be evidence-based and should demonstrably refer to one
or more of the Licensing Objectives. As there is no Licensing Objective relating to public health, the
public health department must ensure representations are relevant to one of the four existing
objectives.

9.0

LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES

9.1

This policy relates to the licensable activities defined by the Act, namely:a)
b)
c)

retail sales of alcohol
the supply of alcohol by or on behalf of a club
the provision of regulated entertainment, being:

i)
ii)
iii)
iv)
v)
vi)
vii)
viii)

performance of a play
exhibition of a film
an indoor sporting event
boxing or wrestling entertainment
performance of live music
playing of recorded music (excluding incidental music)
a performance of dance
entertainment of a similar description to that falling within v, vi and vii)
where the entertainment takes place in the presence of an audience.

d)

the provision of late night refreshment at any time between 11.00pm and 5.00am for
consumption on or off the premises.

9.2

The meaning of the licensable activity ‘regulated entertainment’ is complex and has been subject to
a series of Government deregulation measures. It covers live or recorded music, dance, plays, films
and some sporting activities, however there are a number of exemptions and restrictions on the
types of activities subject to licensing. In addition to this the Deregulation Act 2015 and Live Music
Act 2012 means that live and recorded music at certain times of the day and in certain
circumstances (for audiences less than 500 people and/or that which takes place between 8am and
11pm), is no longer regulated.

9.3

An authorisation for regulated entertainment is however always required for all of the above
activities that take place before 8am and after 11pm, unless exempted under any other provision of
the Act.

9.4

Please contact the Licensing Authority for further information on such matters:
Telephone: 01706 924114
Email: licensing.reg@rochdale.gov.uk

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 23

12

DRAFT Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026

Licensing Objectives

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 24

13

DRAFT Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026
10.0

LICENSING OBJECTIVE – PREVENTION OF CRIME AND DISORDER

10.1

Personal Licences
The Licensing Authority recognises it has very little discretion regarding the granting of these
licences. In general, provided an applicant has a qualification determined by the Home Office and
does not have certain criminal convictions, the application must be granted.
If an applicant has a relevant conviction the police can oppose the application. If an objection is
lodged by the police, a hearing of the Licensing Authority’s Licensing Sub-Committee will be held.
(For further information on Personal Licences, please refer to paragraph 25.0).
Policy
At that hearing the Authority will consider carefully whether the grant of the licence will be in the
interests of the crime prevention objective. It will consider the seriousness and relevance of the
conviction(s), the period that has elapsed since the offence(s) were committed and any mitigating
circumstances. The Authority will only grant the application if it is satisfied that doing so will promote
this objective.
Reason
Prevention of crime is both an objective of the Licensing Act 2003 and an important responsibility of
the Council under the Crime and Disorder Act 1998. A person holding a personal licence should be
a person who is not only properly qualified but a person who will assist the fight against crime.
Granting a licence to a known criminal will in many cases undermine rather than promote the crime
prevention objective.

10.2

Prevention of Crime
Policy
In appropriate cases, the Authority will expect the applicant to indicate in his/her Operating Schedule
the steps proposed to prevent crime and disorder, such as:








Use of CCTV both within and outside the premises.
Metal detection and search facilities.
Measures to prevent the use or supply of illegal drugs.
Employment and regulation of licensed door supervisors and other appropriately trained staff.
Active participation in an appropriate Pub & Club Watch Scheme, or other scheme designed to
ensure effective liaison with the local community, the relevant authorities and other licensees.
Participation in a local radio/pager link scheme.
A Dispersal Policy.

This list is not exhaustive and is provided, simply, to provide examples of appropriate proposals for
inclusion in an operating schedule.

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 25

14

DRAFT Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026
Reason
Prevention of crime is both an objective of the Licensing Act 2003 and an important responsibility of
the Council under the Crime and Disorder Act 1998. It is important, therefore, that the applicant be
able to demonstrate to the Authority the practical steps that will be taken to further this objective.
10.3

Cumulative Impact
Policy
Where the Licensing Authority receives representations from a responsible authority or an interested
party that the cumulative effect of new licences is leading to an area becoming saturated with
premises making it a focal point for large groups to gather in and circulate away from, and that this
is creating exceptional problems of disorder and/or nuisance over and above the impact of the
individual premises, the Licensing Authority can properly consider whether or not the granting of an
additional licence might lead to one or more of the Licensing Objectives being undermined.
That said, nothing in this policy will seek to limit the number of licensed premises simply because
the Authority, any interested party or responsible authority considers that there are enough licensed
premises to satisfy demand. This is properly a commercial decision for the applicant. The Authority
also recognises that the economic regeneration of an area can have positive effects on issues such
as crime and disorder.
However, the Authority recognises that a potential cumulative effect of a proliferation of late night
entertainment premises (including night cafes) may result in an increase in numbers of people either
walking through or congregating in streets during the night and this in turn may have a number of
undesirable consequences, as set out below:





An increase in crime against both property and persons
An increase in noise causing disturbance to residents
Traffic congestion and/or parking difficulties
Littering and fouling

This may result in the amenity of local residents being placed under severe pressure, and it will not
always be possible to attribute a particular problem to customers of particular premises. This means
that, whilst enforcement action to ensure conditions are complied with is taken, this may not resolve
all problems.
The Authority recognises that only a minority of consumers may behave badly.
It should be re-iterated that the Licensing Policy is only one means of addressing the problems
identified above. Other mechanisms include:





Planning controls
Powers of local authorities to designate parts of the local authority area as places where alcohol
may not be consumed publicly and confiscation of alcohol in these areas
Police powers to close down premises or temporary events on the grounds of disorder, the
likelihood of disorder or excessive noise
Prosecution of personal licence holders who sell alcohol to people who are drunk

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 26

15

DRAFT Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026











Powers of the Police, responsible authorities or local residents or businesses to seek a review of
a premises licence or club certificate
Police enforcement of the general law concerning disorder and anti-social behaviour
Use of CCTV
Metal detection and search facilities
Minimising risks from drink promotions and similar
Drug control policies, including installation of drug safes
Use of trained security and other staff
Participation in local trade liaison schemes, such as Pub & Club Watch where available and
including radio/communications schemes
Consideration of use of Anti-Social Behaviour Orders
Transport provision

Where there is evidence that a particular area of the district is already suffering adverse effects
arising from the concentration of late night premises, or that residential areas are under stress, this
will be taken into account in determining any further application for premises within any area
identified.
As such, the Authority will take into account:




The character of the surrounding areas
The impact of the licence on the surrounding area, both individually and cumulatively with
existing licences; and
The nature and character of the proposed operation

In considering all licence applications, the Authority will consider the adequacy of measures
proposed to deal with the potential for nuisance and/or public disorder and to support the licensing
objectives.
Reason
The ‘cumulative impact’ of the granting of an additional/variations to premises licences on the
promotion of the Licensing Objective to prevent crime and disorder is a proper matter for the
Licensing Authority to consider under this policy.
However the policy will not seek to limit the number of licensed premises which will be permitted,
simply because the Licensing Authority considers that there are already enough licensed premises
to satisfy the demand.
10.4

Special Saturation Policy
Policy
The Licensing Authority will consider adopting a special saturation policy if it considers that an area
is already saturated with licensed premises. Before a Special Saturation Policy is adopted, the
following must take place:

Identification of concern about Crime and Disorder or Public Nuisance;

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 27

16

DRAFT Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026


Consideration of whether it can be demonstrated that Crime and Disorder and nuisance are
arising and are caused by the customers of licensed premises, and if so identifying the area
from which problems are arising and the boundaries of that area; or that the risk factors are
such that the area is reaching a point when a cumulative impact is imminent;



Consultation with those specified by section 5(3) of the 2003 Act as part of the general
consultation required in respect of the whole statement of licensing policy



Subject to that consultation, inclusion of a special policy about the future premises licence or
club premises certificate applications from that area within the terms of this licensing policy.



Publication of the Special Policy as part of this licensing policy.

If a Special Saturation Policy is adopted, it will be reviewed every three years to see if it is still
needed or it has had the desired effect.
Reason
This section provides the framework to facilitate the Licensing Authority adopting a special
saturation policy where this is deemed necessary to support the licensing objective of preventing
crime and disorder.
10.5

Sex-Related Activities
Where the activities proposed under the licence include those of a sex-related nature (e.g. topless
waitresses, striptease, table dancing) the Authority will take into account the increased risk to the
licensing objectives. For the sake of convenience the term “striptease” in this part of the policy
should be taken to refer to any entertainment or service involving exposure of private parts or the
sexual stimulation of patrons.
Policy
It will be the policy of the Licensing Authority not normally to grant licences which involve a sex
related element near schools, churches, hospitals, youth clubs or other sensitive premises where
significant numbers of children are likely to attend.
Where such licences are granted it will impose conditions designed to ensure that children are not
admitted to and cannot witness these activities and to prevent crime and disorder problems. For
example:
The area proposed for striptease shall:




be in a position where the performance cannot be seen from the street;
be in a designated area of the premises with segregation from the audience;
be in a position where the performers will have direct access to the dressing room without
passing through or in close proximity to the audience.

Whilst striptease entertainment is taking place no person under the age of 18 shall be on the
licensed premises and a clear notice shall be displayed at each entrance to the premises in a

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 28

17

DRAFT Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026
prominent position, so that it can be easily read by persons entering the premises, in the following
terms:
NO PERSON UNDER 18 WILL BE ADMITTED
To prevent the possibility of children seeing unsuitable advertising material the Policy of the
Authority will be to attach a condition to the effect that “Except with the consent of the Licensing
Authority there shall be no external advertising of the striptease entertainment either at the premises
or in its immediate vicinity.” In considering the grant of applications involving striptease the Authority
will also have regard to the increased risk of nuisance to nearby residents and will consider rejecting
the application or attaching appropriate conditions.
Reason
These policies are designed to further the licensing objective of protecting children by preventing
them being exposed to unsuitable material or acts. They are also designed to further the crime
prevention and prevention of nuisance objectives by recognising the increased risk of nuisance or
illegal activities posed by such activities.
10.6

Drugs
Almost every recent survey indicates that more people are taking illegal drugs and are using a wider
range than ever before. This is particularly true of what are often referred to as ‘recreational drugs’.
Their misuse can hold grave dangers and has even led to fatalities.
Other factors may have contributed to these deaths, such as lack of drinking water, excessive
drinking of water, an overly hot environment with inadequate ventilation, or a lack of adequate
information about drugs.
Drugs alter the way people behave, so their distribution and possession is controlled by law.
Controlled drugs are usually manufactured and supplied illegally, which attracts criminal involvement
in their distribution. Drugs manufactured illegally often vary in quality and strength. This puts
people taking such drugs in danger.
The Authority recognises that drug-use by young people in a club environment is not something that
is relevant to all licensed premises. However, many entertainment venues such as night clubs and
dance venues can be popular both with drug misusers and suppliers, and there is evidence of
increased use of drugs even in traditional community-type public houses.
Policy
The Authority will expect licensees of venues likely to be affected by drug issues to take all
reasonable steps to prevent the entry of drugs into licensed premises, to take appropriate steps to
prevent drugs changing hands within the premises and to take practical measures to prevent
tragedies as a result of drug misuse.
In particular, the Authority will expect licensees of such venues to be familiar with the contents of
Chapter 4 (drug awareness) of the BIIAB Level 2 National Certificate for Entertainment Licensees
and to be following the recommendations of that handbook. The Authority will also expect licensees
to be following the best practice guide on safer nightlife which builds on the safer clubbing published
by the Home Office.

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 29

18

DRAFT Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026

It is hoped that licensees will follow these recommendations on a voluntary basis as failure to do so
could lead to the licence being reviewed with the possibility of revocation. In appropriate cases the
Authority will consider imposing the recommendations detailed in these documents by way of
licence conditions.
As part of the Operating Schedule for the premises, the Authority may require written drug control
policies, which document the control measures in place.
Reason
The purpose of this policy is to further the crime prevention objective and to ensure public safety by
preventing a tragic loss of life caused by drug abuse, overheating and other factors.
11.0

LICENSING OBJECTIVE – PROMOTING PUBLIC SAFETY

11.1

Venue Safety
Policy
The Authority will expect the premises to be constructed and maintained to the highest possible
standards of safety. It will expect the applicant to have addressed the requirements of Health and
Safety at Work and Fire Safety legislation and where appropriate the Technical Standards published
by the District Surveyors Association.
Premises with large areas of ceiling that are unsupported, e.g. domed or vaulted ceilings to
premises such as theatres, cinemas, etc. may require specific structural assessments on a
programmed basis.
The Authority will also expect that Operating Schedules will contain the significant findings of the fire
risk assessments, including such matters as emergency evacuation, staff training and systems for
ensuring the adequacy of safety equipment where appropriate.
The Authority will also expect the Operating Schedule to detail how the premises will be properly
managed and maintained to ensure public and staff safety at all times.
Reason
Public safety is a very important licensing objective as it is about protecting the safety and the lives
of patrons. It is the intention of the Authority that anyone visiting a licensed venue can do so in
complete safety, confident that they are visiting premises that have been constructed with safety in
mind and that are well managed and maintained.

11.2

Hypnotism
Policy
If an applicant wishes to have any performance of stage hypnotism at any time this should be
addressed in the Operating Schedule. In the event of any performance of stage hypnotism the
Authority will normally require written notification 8 weeks prior to the performance taking place.

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 30

19

DRAFT Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026
Where consent is given for this type of entertainment the council will impose specific licence
conditions.
Reason
It is recognised that Hypnotism poses specific risks and therefore additional licensing conditions
should be covered within the Operating Schedule, designed to ensure the safety of the audiences
and in particular to ensure that children are not admitted to and cannot participate in such activities.
Examples of conditions relevant to Hypnotism can be found in Appendix D.
11.3

Drugs
The Authority recognises that the management of drug issues is relevant to the Licensing Objective
to protect Public Safety. However the council’s policy in respect of drugs issues is outlined in
paragraph 10.6.

12.0

LICENSING OBJECTIVE – PREVENTION OF PUBLIC NUISANCE

12.1

Licensing Hours
Policy
The Authority recognises that widespread fixed closing times in certain areas can lead to peaks of
disturbance and disorder when large numbers of people emerge onto the streets at the same time.
Flexible licensing hours, particularly where alcohol is involved, may therefore be an important factor
in reducing friction at late night food outlets, taxi ranks and other late night services.
The Authority accepts the principle of activity taking place over 24 hours and 7 days a week.
No general restriction or limitation on hours in any area is imposed by this policy.
The hours requested by the applicant will normally be approved where the applicant can show that
the proposal would not adversely affect the environmental quality, residential amenity and character
of any particular area, and that the licensing objectives would not, in any other way, be
compromised.
Shops, stores and supermarkets will generally be permitted to sell alcohol during the normal hours
they intend to open for shopping. However, in the case of individual premises which are a focus for
disorder and disturbance then, subject to representations, limitations may be appropriate.
It will be necessary for applicants, who wish to vary the hours during which alcohol is sold for
consumption on the premises, to include in the Operating Schedule the times when the premises
will open, when sales of alcohol will commence and cease, and the time when the premises will be
closed. This will, in effect, facilitate “drinking up time”.
Where late hours are requested, particularly involving entertainment, the imposition of conditions
may be necessary to ensure the achievement of the Licensing Objectives.

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 31

20

DRAFT Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026
Reason
This policy is aimed at the fulfilment of the licensing objective of “preventing public nuisance”.
12.2

Location and Impact of Activity
This part of the policy is concerned with whether a proposal is appropriate in a location with
particular regard to the impact on any residential areas. In most of the Borough, which is
predominantly residential, the policy will in appropriate cases limit the normal hours of opening for
new licensed activities to a maximum time which is no later than midnight.
Later opening hours are considered to be acceptable, in principle, for premises in commercial areas
with high levels of public transport accessibility. However, in all cases, the granting of a licence will
depend on impact of an activity, particularly on local residents. It is necessary to consider, amongst
other things, the level of impact that could arise from noise and vibration, litter, parking, people
coming and going, transport, crowds and queuing; and whether any impact is particularly
unacceptable late at night.
Policy
If relevant representations are received, the Authority will normally expect a closing time of no later
than midnight for licensed premises in residential areas, but a later closing time may be permitted
for premises located:






in predominantly commercial areas,
where there is a high level of accessibility to public transport services; and
where there is an appropriate amount of car parking, readily accessible to the premises, and in
places where vehicular movement will not cause demonstrable adverse impact to local
residents; and
the Operating Schedule submitted with the application indicates that the applicant is taking
appropriate steps to comply with the licensing objective of preventing public nuisance.

Exceptions may be made to permit a later closing time/earlier opening time where it can be
demonstrated that:




the licensed activities would not be likely to cause adverse impact especially on local residents,
and that, if there is a potential to cause adverse impact, appropriate measures will be put in
place to prevent it; and
there will not be any increase in the cumulative adverse impact from these or similar activities,
on an adjacent residential area.

Reason
This part of the policy dealing with opening hours is based on a broad distinction between the
approach to be taken in certain predominantly commercial areas, like parts of the town centres, and
the rest of the Borough.
Any activity involving public entertainment or eating or drinking on the premises has the potential to
impact adversely on the surrounding area due to noise, smells, or congestion on the footway. It
may also be caused by the customers being noisy when leaving, leaving litter or taking up on-street

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 32

21

DRAFT Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026
car parking space in close proximity to residential premises. The impact of noise generated by these
activities, especially customers departing either on foot or in cars, is particularly intrusive at night
when ambient noise levels are much lower.
12.3

Management of Potential Noise Nuisances
Policy
The applicant will be expected to propose practical steps to prevent disturbance to local residents in
appropriate cases. In relation to noise from within the building the Authority will expect the applicant
to have considered the likelihood of any sound leakage from the premises. This noise could relate
not only to music but also to equipment or patrons. If there appears to be a potential for sound
leakage the applicant will be able to address this in practical ways such as:




Keeping doors and windows closed and providing adequate mechanical ventilation.
Reducing sound levels and installing a sound-limiting device to prevent sound exceeding the
appropriate level.
Installing soundproofing measures to contain sound and vibration.

The Authority will expect popular venues, which attract queues, to formulate a system to avoid
disturbance to residents. This can sometimes be achieved by simply ensuring that the direction of
the queue is away from residential accommodation.
However, excessive noise and/or disorder require more rigorous action. It is important that queues
formed later in the evening are supervised to keep noise to a minimum. This action can also help
stop drug dealers from supplying drugs during the queuing process but the prime purpose is to
prevent noise and disturbance. Door supervisors will generally carry out this role, but they must be
given clear instructions as to their duties and responsibilities and be adequately supervised.
In terms of patrons leaving the premises, particularly late at night or early in the morning, the
Authority will expect the applicant to have included in the Operating Schedule any practical steps
considered appropriate, such as the examples given below, although there will be few premises that
need to address all these:


Erecting prominent notices at the exits to premises asking customers to leave quietly and not
to slam car doors.



At appropriate times using the PA system to make announcements to the same effect.



Instructing door staff to ask customers leaving the premises to leave the area quietly.



Reducing the volume of music towards the end of the evening and where appropriate playing
quieter, more soothing music as the evening winds down.



Availability of licensed Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicles to take patrons from the
premises.



In appropriate cases door supervisors or a manager patrolling nearby streets to assess for
themselves whether there is a problem and how best to deal with it.

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 33

22

DRAFT Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026


Banning from the premises people who regularly leave in a noisy fashion.



Increasing outside lighting levels, where practicable without causing further nuisance.



Where there is a private forecourt, preventing patrons from using it for eating and drinking etc.
after 11pm, or ensuring it is vacated 30 minutes before the terminal hour.



Ensuring that customers are not permitted to take open bottles or glasses of alcohol out of the
premises.



Taking appropriate steps where necessary to deal with noxious smells and light pollution.

Reason
One of the greatest irritations to residents trying to sleep is the sound of music escaping from
licensed premises. Such an escape of sound might preclude the grant of a licence or, if one has
already been granted, for it to be reviewed with a view to possible revocation. It might also lead to a
Noise Abatement notice being issued under the Environmental Protection Act by the responsible
authority. Responsible applicants and licensees will wish to avoid the need for such action, as they
will wish to comply with the licensing objective of preventing public nuisance.
There can be little doubt that a well-managed licensed venue can benefit the local community. On
the other hand, there is clearly a risk of local residents being disturbed, particularly if the venue is
open late at night.
This is because people leaving the premises, particularly late at night or in the early hours of the
morning, can be a significant problem. Customers may be less inhibited about their behaviour and
may be unaware of the noise they are creating.
The area will be generally quieter and any noise will, therefore, be amplified and provide more
disturbance for residents. Clearly a responsible applicant or licensee will wish to further the
licensing objective of preventing public nuisance by introducing practical measures, such as those
referred to above, to prevent such nuisance.
12.4

Consideration of the Impact of Licensed Activities
Policy
When considering whether any licensable activity should be permitted, on receipt of any relevant
representations, the Authority will assess the likelihood of it causing unacceptable adverse impact,
particularly on local residents, by considering the following factors amongst other relevant matters:





the type of use, the number of customers likely to attend the premises and the type of customers
at the time of the application;
the proposed hours of operation;
the level of public transport accessibility for customers either arriving or leaving premises and
the likely means of public or private transport that will be used by the customers;
the means of access to the premises, which should have customer entrances on the principal
pedestrian routes;

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 34

23

DRAFT Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026




the cumulative impact of licensed premises in an area;
the scope for mitigating any impact;
how often the activity occurs.

and, in considering any application for a premises which is already licensed, the Authority will take
into account any evidence:
 of past demonstrable adverse impact from the activity, especially on local residents;
or
 that, if adverse impact has been caused, appropriate measures have been agreed and put into
effect by the applicant to mitigate the adverse impact. If, however, such measures have not
been put into effect or there has been insufficient time to assess them, this could impact on the
determination of the application;
or
 of past history of the premises, where there have been no relevant complaints or problems.
Reason
The prime purpose of this part of the policy is to achieve the licensing objective of preventing public
nuisance. In furtherance of this aim the policy lists particular matters that the Authority will take into
account in considering whether a licensed activity is likely to cause an adverse impact, particularly
to local residents:








The precise nature of the activity, especially for entertainment, will be a factor in considering the
impact, principally in terms of the age and orderliness of the customers.
Levels of noise from licensed premises, which may be acceptable at certain times of day, may
not be acceptable later in the evening or at night when ambient noise levels are much lower.
The Authority's preference is to see licensed activities located in places where customers are not
reliant on private car use, and can walk or use public transport. The Borough varies
considerably. In town centres, a high use of public transport could be expected by the
customers of licensed premises but, even there, car use is likely to increase when activities go
on very late. Consequently, there could be unacceptable parking and traffic in nearby residential
areas.
The main impact of customers arriving, queuing and leaving should be confined to principal
pedestrian routes as far as possible. It would not be appropriate, for instance, to have licensed
activities which cause large numbers of people to exit into a residential area as opposed to a
situation where pedestrian movement takes place directly to and from nearby public transport
services.
Car parking by customers of licensed premises can be a serious problem. This affects local
residents in terms of noise and their ability to find a parking space, particularly after the hours
when any controlled parking zones are in operation. It can also affect the movement of essential
traffic on primary routes and delay bus and emergency services. When considering the possible
impact on residents, the Authority will look at the area within which the impact could be
experienced, in particular the likely distance at which most customers arriving by car would seek
to park. The potential parking area for major entertainments can be substantial.

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 35

24

DRAFT Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026

With any adverse impact it may be possible to take steps to mitigate or prevent the impact and if
such measures are reliable an activity may be licensed. In accordance with Government advice, the
decisions taken by the Authority will obviously be focused on matters within the control of individual
licensees, and others granted relevant permissions, and the steps they can take to achieve the
licensing objectives. Accordingly, these matters will centre on the premises and places being used
for licensable activities and the likely impact of those activities on members of public living, working
or engaged in normal activity in the area concerned.
In taking its decisions the Authority accepts the difficulty a licence holder has in preventing antisocial behaviour by individuals, once they are beyond the direct control of that licence holder.
However, it will also take into account that the licensing objective of preventing public nuisance will
not be achieved if patrons from licensed premises regularly engage in anti-social activities to the
detriment of nearby residents or businesses. Furthermore it will also take into account its
responsibility under the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to do all it can to prevent crime and disorder in
the Borough.
The aim of the policy is, therefore, to achieve a balanced approach to these difficult issues.
12.5

Cumulative Impact
The Authority recognises that the issue of Cumulative Impact is relevant to the Licensing
Objective to prevent Public Nuisance. However the Authority’s Policy in respect of Cumulative
Impact is outlined in paragraph 10.3.

12.6

Special Saturation Policy
The Authority recognises that Special Saturation Policies are relevant to the Licensing Objective to
prevent Public Nuisance. However the Authority’s Policy in respect of Special Saturation Policies is
outlined in paragraph 10.4.

13.0

LICENSING OBJECTIVE – PROTECTION OF CHILDREN FROM HARM

13.1

Children
Policy
The Authority recognises that the Act allows for the free access of children to all licensed premises,
subject to the licensee’s discretion and any conditions applied to the licence. There is also the
proviso that children under the age of 16 must be accompanied by an adult over the age of 18 on
premises licensed to sell alcohol.
The Authority will not impose any conditions which specifically require access for children to be
provided at any premises. Under normal circumstances access by children will remain a matter for
the discretion of the individual licensee or club, subject to there being no conflict with the licensing
objective to protect children from harm.
When considering applications for premises licences, the Authority will take into account the history
of a particular premises and the nature of the activities proposed to be provided when considering
any options appropriate to prevent harm to children. For example:

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 36

25

DRAFT Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026





Where there have been convictions of members of the current staff for serving alcohol to minors
or with a reputation for underage drinking
With a known association with drug taking or dealing
Where there is a strong element of gambling on the premises, or
Where entertainment of an adult or sexual nature is commonly provided

In these circumstances, conditions may be attached to any licence to:




Limit the hours when children may be present
Restrict the age of persons allowed on a premises
Limit or exclude when certain activities may take place, or
Require an accompanying adult.

In premises showing films a mandatory condition will restrict access only to those who meet the
required age limit in accordance with any certificate granted by the British Board of Film
Classification or, in specific cases, a certificate given to the film by the Authority.
Where large numbers of unaccompanied children are likely to be present, for example, a children’s
show or pantomime, conditions may be imposed requiring the presence of an appropriate number of
adult staff to ensure public safety and protection from harm.
For the purpose of this policy, the Licensing Authority recognises the following body as “the
responsible body” to advise on matters relating to the protection of children from harm:
Rochdale Borough Council Safeguarding Children Unit
Number One Riverside
Smith Street
Rochdale
OL16 1XU
Reason
These policies are designed to allow flexibility for the licensee to ensure that, where appropriate,
licensed premises are “user friendly” for children, but also to ensure that they are adequately
protected.
13.2

Sex- Related Activities
The Authority recognises that the provision of sex related activities is relevant to the Licensing
Objective to protect Children from Harm. However the Authority’s Policy in respect of provision of
sex-related activities is outlined in paragraph 10.5.

13.3

Proof of Age
The consumption of alcohol by people under the age of 18 is a serious problem that the Authority is
keen to address. Licensees are, therefore, encouraged to seriously consider the adoption of a policy
within their Operating Schedule for the production of proof of age by young people attempting to
purchase alcohol. It is suggested that any scheme adopted should comply with the PASS
accreditation system, and should include passports and photo-driving licences.

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 37

26

DRAFT Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026

Other Important
Information

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 38

27

DRAFT Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026
14.0

PLANNING AND LICENSING

14.1

There are a number of key differences between licensing and planning control. Licensing is
concerned with the operation and management of the premises whereas planning control relates to
the use of the premises.

14.2

The Licensing Authority recognises that there should be a clear separation of the licensing, planning
and building controls to avoid duplication and inefficiency. Licensing applications should not be seen
as a re-run of any planning application. Licensing Committees are not bound by decisions made by
a planning committee and vice versa.

14.3

The granting of a premises licence does not negate the need to obtain the appropriate planning
permission and/or building control approval.

14.4

When exercising its licensing functions, the Licensing Authority will not be influenced by a question
of need, unless there is a Cumulative Impact Policy in place for the area in which the premises is
situated. The issue of whether or not there is a need for a particular premises is a commercial matter
and not relevant to the Licensing Authority’s considerations.

14.5

There may be circumstances when, as a condition of planning permission, a terminal hour has been
set for the use of premises for commercial purposes. Where these hours are different to the licensed
hours, the earlier closing time must be observed. Any premises operating in breach of their planning
permission would be liable to enforcement action under planning law.

14.6

Building Regulations govern a variety of issues which directly contribute to the Licensing Objectives,
including means of escape, structural integrity, accessibility and public safety. Building Regulation
Approval and Completion Certificates may be required prior to the use of the premises for licensable
activities.

15.0

PROVISIONAL STATEMENTS

15.1

The Authority recognises that in certain situations businesses and developers need to have security
that a premises licence is likely to be granted following construction of new premises or alteration of
existing unlicensed premises.
The Authority will issue provisional statements in accordance with the Act and guidance.

16.0

COMPLIANCE AND ENFORCEMENT

16.1

If the need arises enforcement action will be taken in accordance with the Authority’s agreed
Enforcement Policy.
A protocol on the implementation of a shared enforcement role between the Authority, GMP and
other agencies has been agreed by all parties.
In general terms, enforcement will be targeted on agreed problem, and high-risk, premises/activities
which require greater attention. Premises which are well run and managed, and therefore present a
lower risk, will enjoy a greater degree of self-regulation.

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 39

28

DRAFT Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026
17.0

CONDITIONS

17.1

The Authority will, as far as it is possible to do so, avoid imposing disproportionate and overburdensome conditions on premises. The Authority does not propose to implement standard
conditions of licence across the board, but instead will draw upon the Model Pools of Conditions
issued by the Home Office and attach conditions as appropriate given the circumstances of each
individual case, where relevant representations are received.
The Authority reserves the right to require the use of Door Supervisors, in appropriate cases, in
order to support the Licensing Objectives.
The Authority accepts the principle that conditions should not be imposed on licences to deal with
issues that can be the subject of enforcement using existing legislation.

18.0

SPECIAL OCCASIONS

18.1

The Authority will follow any licensing hours orders made by the Secretary of State as regards to
any special occasion.

19.0

PREMISES LICENCES

19.1

The Authority expects that, normally, there will be at least one Personal Licence holder on any
licensed premises when alcohol is being sold or supplied.
The Authority also expects that, normally, premises providing entertainment, eg public houses,
nightclubs, theatres, cinemas, etc, will have maximum capacities stated on the licences, to assist in
the achievement of public safety, unless their Operating Schedules satisfy the Responsible
Authorities that maximum capacities are not necessary. Such premises will also need to consider
the provision of sufficient, adequately-trained first-aiders.
If it is intended to provide “special-risk” entertainments, which involve pyrotechnics, smoke, vapour,
strobe lighting, lasers, etc., then it will be expected that these would be taken into account within the
Operating Schedule.

20.0

CLUB PREMISES CERTIFICATES

20.1

The Act recognises that premises, to which public access is restricted and where alcohol is supplied
other than for profit, give rise to different issues for licensing law than those presented by
commercial enterprises selling direct to the public. For this reason, it preserves aspects of earlier
alcohol licensing law as it applied to “registered members clubs”. These clubs are organisations
where members have joined together for particular social, sporting or political purposes and then
combined to buy alcohol in bulk as members of the organisation for supply in that context.

20.2

Clubs have traditionally not been “licensed” because “sales” do not take place there. The grant of a
club premises certificate means that a qualifying club is entitled to certain benefits. These include:




the authority to supply alcohol to members and sell it to guests on the premises to which the
certificate relates without the need for any member or employee to hold a personal licence;
the absence of a requirement to specify a designated premises supervisor;
more limited rights of entry for the police and authorised persons because the premises are
considered private and not generally open to the public;

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 40

29

DRAFT Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026




the club premises not being subject to police powers of instant closure on grounds of disorder
and noise nuisance (except when being used under the authority of a temporary event notice or
premises licence) because they operate under their codes of discipline and rules which are
rigorously enforced; and
not being subject to potential orders of the magistrates’ court for the closure of all licensed
premises in an area when disorder is happening or expected.

20.3

Previously, registered members clubs also enjoyed another privilege of being outside the normal
licensing regime: the freedom to sell alcohol to minors and allow them to consume it on the club
premises. Although in recent years most clubs have operated voluntary rules which prohibit sales
and supply of alcohol to those under 18 years old, the Act has removed this privilege and the sale or
supply of alcohol to children in such clubs is now unlawful.

20.4

The new authority for the supply of alcohol, and provision of other licensable activities on qualifying
club premises, is a club premises certificate and this is issued by the Licensing Authority.

20.5

The arrangements for applying for, or seeking to vary, club premises certificates are extremely
similar to those in respect of a premises licence. Club Operating Schedules prepared by clubs, as
with Operating Schedules for premises licences, must include the steps the club intends to take to
promote the licensing objectives. These will be translated into conditions included in the certificate,
unless the conditions have been modified by the Licensing Authority, following consideration of
relevant representations by responsible authorities or interested parties.

20.6

The legislation detailing the statutory qualifying conditions for clubs is provided at Appendix C.

21.0

TEMPORARY EVENT NOTICES (TENS)

21.1

If a licensable activity is planned to take place on none licensed premises, the organiser can submit
a Temporary Events Notice (TEN). A TEN can also be used to include additional licensable activities
or alter the hours of operation on licensed premises. They can cover any period up to 168 hours. A
TEN has to be served on the Police, Environmental Health and the Licensing Authority at least 10
working days prior to commencement of the event, a longer period is preferable wherever possible.
There is nothing to prevent simultaneous notification of multiple events at a single time so long as
the first event is at least 10 working days away and there must be at least 24 hours between events.
Only the Police and Environmental Health can object to a TEN.

21.2

Standard TENs must be given a minimum of 10 working days prior to the first day of the event and
the Licensing Authority recommend that wherever possible notice-givers submit their TEN a
minimum of 28 days prior to the commencement of the event. There is provision for making an
application for a late TEN. Such applications may be made no earlier than 9 working days before the
event and no less than 5 working days before the event. The Licensing Authority understands this to
mean 9 or 5 clear days exclusive of the day on which the event is to start and exclusive of the day
on which the notice is given.

21.3

Where one or more of the relevant statutory limits are exceeded, the Licensing
Authority will serve a Counter-Notice to prevent the licensable activities from going ahead. There is
no provision under the Act to appeal against the issue of a Counter-Notice.

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 41

30

DRAFT Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026
21.4

Greater Manchester Police or the Council’s Environmental Health service can issue an objection
notice. The Licensing Authority will consider any such notice at a hearing (unless the objection
notice is withdrawn before the hearing date). The hearing will be confined to consideration of the
Licensing Objectives and will be held in accordance with the procedure. There is no provision for a
hearing in the case of a late TEN.

21.5

The Licensing Authority will notify the applicant of its decision at least 24 hours before the beginning
of the event period specified in the temporary event notice. Depending on the nature and location of
such events, these can have serious crime and disorder implications. Whilst accepting that the
statutory notification period is a minimum of 10 days organisers of these events are encouraged to
submit their notification as soon as reasonably practicable to enable the Police and the Authority to
work with them.

22.0

LATE NIGHT LEVY

22.1

The Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 introduced Late Night Levies. A Late Night
Levy (LNL) enables Licensing Authorities to raise a contribution towards the costs of policing the
Night Time Economy by charging a levy on holders of Premises Licences and Club Premises
Certificates authorised to sell alcohol.
It would apply across the whole Borough and be applicable to any premises licensed to operate
from a fixed time between 00.00 hrs – 06.00 hrs.
Any consideration for the introduction of a LNL would be the subject of separate formal consultation
and, if it is to be introduced, must be adopted at a meeting of the full Council.

23.0

EARLY MORNING RESTRICTION ORDERS

23.1

The Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 also introduced Early Morning Restriction
Orders (EMRO) which is a power enabling the Licensing Authority to prohibit the sale of alcohol for
a specified time period between the hours of midnight and 6am in the whole or part of its area, if it is
satisfied that this would be appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives.

23.2

EMROs are designed to address recurring problems such as high levels of alcohol related crime
and disorder in specific areas at specific times, serious public nuisance and other instances of
alcohol related anti-social behaviour which is not directly attributable to specific premises.

23.3

The Licensing Authority may consider whether an EMRO is appropriate once all other avenues to
resolve problems associated with licensed premises and the promotion of the licensing objections
have been exhausted. The EMRO can only be an appropriate step to promote the licensing
objectives on the basis that it is reasonable, justified and proportionate in the circumstances.

24.0

SUSPENSION OF PREMISES LICENCES/CLUB PREMISES CERTIFICATES

24.1

The Licensing Authority is required to suspend a Premises Licence or Club Premises Certificate if
the annual fee has not been paid when it is due. Where a Premises Licence or Club Premises
Certificate has been suspended, no licensable activities can be lawfully carried out at the premises
until the annual fee has been paid. The suspension will be lifted immediately upon payment of the
fee and the licensable activities can be resumed.

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 42

31

DRAFT Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026
25.0

PERSONAL LICENCES

25.1

The Authority recognises it has very little discretion regarding the granting of personal licences. In
general, provided an applicant has a qualification determined by the Home Office and does not have
certain criminal convictions, the application must be granted. A person holding a personal licence
should be a person who is not only properly qualified but a person who will assist the police and
relevant authorities in the fight against crime. Granting a licence to a person with a criminal history
may in some cases undermine rather than promote the crime prevention objective.

25.2

If an applicant has a relevant conviction the police can oppose the application. If an objection is
lodged by the police, a Licensing Sub-Committee will be held. The Licensing Sub-Committee will
consider carefully whether the grant of the licence will be in conflict with the crime prevention
objective. It will consider the seriousness and relevance of the conviction(s), whether the conviction
is classed as spent under the Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974 (as amended) the period that has
elapsed since the offence(s) were committed and any mitigating circumstances. The Authority will
only grant the application if it is satisfied that doing so will promote this objective. A person holding a
personal licence should be a person who is not only properly qualified but a person who will assist
the fight against crime.

25.3

Under the Deregulation Act 2015, any Personal Licence falling for renewal on or after 1st April 2015
will not now require to be renewed. Personal Licences will now remain in force indefinitely, unless
surrendered, forfeited etc.

26.0

ADULT ENTERTAINMENT

26.1

Rochdale Borough Council has adopted the provisions of Schedule 3 Local Government
[Miscellaneous Provisions] Act 1982 and has a separate policy which relates to adult entertainment
venues and activities. Therefore, additional licences may be required under separate legislation for
sexual entertainment venues.

27.0

ALCOHOL DELIVERY SERVICES

27.1

The Licensing Authority considers there are particular risks associated with delivery services for
alcohol. In accordance with current statutory guidance, “persons who run premises providing
‘alcohol delivery services’ should notify the relevant licensing authority that they are operating such
a service in their operating schedule. This ensures that the licensing authority can properly consider
what conditions are appropriate. Premises with an existing premises licence, which choose to
operate such a service in addition to their existing licensable activities, should contact their licensing
authority for its view on whether this form of alcohol sale is already permitted or whether an
application to vary the licence will be required”.

27.2

The Licensing Authority expects measures consistent with standards expected for licensed
premises as outlined under ‘Licensing Objectives’.

27.3

In addition, the Licensing Authority expects operators to implement age-verification procedures at
both the point of sale and delivery stages, with a Challenge 25 policy implemented at the point of
delivery.

27.4

Particular attention should be paid to making it clear to customers that receipt of orders that contain
alcohol must be by an adult. Retailers should ensure that delivery staff have been given appropriate

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 43

32

DRAFT Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026
training in procedures relating to requesting and identifying proof of age, and implement these
procedures as standard.
27.5

Any promotional material including the name of the business and website should be consistent with
the responsible sale of alcohol. Additionally, any website URL or telephone number to be used for
orders is expected to be given to the Licensing Authority.

27.6

The delivery of alcohol to problematic house parties causing local nuisance and disorder has been a
problem in some areas of the Borough. Operators are expected to use their discretion to ensure that
deliveries are refused in situations experiencing alcohol-related nuisance or disorder and to ensure
that alcohol is not given to persons who appear drunk.

27.7

Where the Authority’s discretion is engaged following relevant representations, conditions restricting
the operation of alcohol delivery services may be imposed by the Authority / Responsible Authorities
where appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives.

27.8

A zero-tolerance approach to new psychoactive substances (NPS) is also expected of operators.

28.0

LARGE SCALE EVENTS

28.1

The Authority considers that there are specific risks associated with the holding of large public
events, such as concerts and festivals. Therefore, this section sets out particular expectations
regarding how such events are expected to be managed.

28.2

For licensable events where the capacity exceeds 499 a premises licence will need to be applied
for. A premises licence can be time limited so that it is only in effect for the duration of the event.
Open air events may range from relatively small local events, like fairs, which may last for four or
five days, to major pop festivals lasting one or more days. Despite the temporary duration of such
major events, they can attract huge crowds of tens of thousands of people and the risks to public
safety and to crime and disorder as well as public nuisance may be considerable. A temporary event
likely to attract more than 499 people will require an application for a premises licence and will not
be covered by the Temporary Event Notice provisions.

28.3

If you wish to hold an event in a public space in the Borough of Rochdale, it is strongly
recommended that you contact the Council’s Events Management Team / Safety Advisory Group
(SAG) in the very first instance at least 6-9 months prior to the proposed event. This will allow the
Council and other Partner Agencies sufficient time to assist the organisers to plan their events
safely. Many events will give rise to special considerations in respect of the licensing objectives.
Operating schedules should therefore reflect this. The Events Management Team will inform you as
to whether any licence is required. Further guidance is available from the Licensing Authority. It is
recommended that a licence application be made at least 3 months prior to the event.

28.4

In considering applications for such events, the Licensing Authority will have particular regard to any
track record of the event organiser as well as the comprehensiveness of the event arrangements.

28.5

Licensees are expected to have regard to at least the following (this is not an exhaustive list);
a) Setting up a management group for the event comprising relevant agencies, including but not
limited to all responsible authorities
b) Overall event safety control
c) Production details

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 44

33

DRAFT Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026
d) Medical and first aid provision
e) Site management and the structural integrity of all temporary structures
f) Crowd management, stewarding and security
g) Fire safety and control
h) Configuration and control of sound systems
i) Management of any on-site and off-site car parking
j) Management of concessions and franchises
k) Provision and maintenance of water supplies
l) Welfare and provision of information
m) Provision and maintenance of sanitary facilities
n) Reception, collection and removal of litter and other waste
o) Liaison with local residents and businesses
28.6

Relevant details in respect of the above may include:
 The proposed capacity of the event
 The provision of plans to agreed scales detailing exits, entrances, temporary bars, marquees
and all facilities to be provided within the premises
 Details of proposals for entertainments, together with information regarding any special effects
 Details of proposals for concessionary activities, including food franchises, bars, restaurants and
non-food retail sales


An alcohol management plan, which will include details of:
o
o
o
o
o
o
o














Responsible alcohol service
The designated premises supervisor
Personal Licence holders
Control of the sale of alcohol
Proof-of-age policy
Promotion of responsible drinking
Appropriate signage

A Safety Policy and Risk Assessment for the event
Details of arrangements for co-ordinating and controlling event safety on the site
A site safety plan, including site safety rules, requirements for construction and breakdown of
site, structural safety calculations, drawings of temporary structures and safety barriers, details
of electrical installations and lighting arrangements
Incident contingency and emergency plans (including a Major Incident Plan)
A crowd management, stewarding and security plan (taking into account the views of
Greater Manchester Police)
A medical ambulance and first aid plan
A fire safety plan
A traffic management plan drawn up in consultation with the relevant departments of Rochdale
Borough Council, Greater Manchester Police, Greater Manchester Fire and Rescue, North West
Ambulance Service, TfGM and private sector partners. Where areas covered by other local
authorities could be affected by the event, relevant departments of those respective authorities
should also be included
A sound assessment with details and proposals for monitoring and controlling sound emission
Details for the provision of cleaning and maintenance of sanitary accommodation, washing
facilities and drinking water
Details for management of litter and disposal of other waste

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 45

34

DRAFT Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026



Details of welfare arrangement facilities and provisions for information on site
Details of the arrangements and facilities for disabled persons.

28.7

Consideration should not solely focus on the activities taking place within the area of the licensed
premises. Appropriate measures to address issues outside the licensable area include:
 Putting in place plans that will help to minimise the day-to-day disruption of lives of local
residents, businesses and existing operations for the period of the event
 Providing a robust traffic and transport plan that takes into account the needs of the local
community – and minimises the impact of visitors to the area for the event – while maintaining a
safe and convenient point of access and egress for the attendees within the parameters of
existing traffic, transport and parking provision
 Putting in place a strategy for the control of access to and egress from the licensed premises for
the control of disorderly behaviour
 Providing facilities external to the licensed area that will assist in the management of the access
and egress of visitors to the event, and minimise the impact on the existing public realm
including, but not restricted to, additional toilet facilities and a designated park and ride area
 Putting in place a cleansing strategy beyond the immediate perimeter of the licensed premises in
association with the local authority
 Providing communication channels for the local community that will enable residents and
businesses to access sufficient detailed information prior to the event days
 Providing a hotline and information phone number for residents and local businesses for the
duration of the event.

29.0

TABLES AND CHAIRS ON THE HIGHWAY

29.1

Licensed premises that wish to provide tables and chairs on the public highway may only do so
under permission of a Street Café Licence issued by Council’s Highways Service. These licences
are subject to their own specific restrictions / conditions of use. Please contact the Council’s
Highways Service for further information.

30.0

FILM CLASSIFICATIONS

30.1

Where a Premises Licence authorises the exhibition of films, the licence must include a condition
requiring the admission of children to films to be restricted in accordance with:



Either the BBFC classification;
Or where the film is not classified by the BBFC, any recommendations made by the Licensing
Authority.

30.2

In accordance with the guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003, the Licensing
Authority shall concern itself primarily with the protection of children from harm when classifying
films. It will not use its powers to censor films save where there is clear cause to believe this is
required to promote the licensing objectives.

30.3

The Licensing Authority considers the classification system used by the BBFC to be nationally
understood and accepted. It will, therefore, use this system as a reference point for determining its
recommendation(s) on the restriction of access of children to the film(s). However, it should be
noted that the Licensing Authority is not obliged to follow these guidelines.

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 46

35

DRAFT Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026
30.4

Requests for certification by the Licensing Authority should be made at least in writing 28 days in
advance of the proposed screening date and submitted to the Licensing Authority. Requests should
include:






A DVD copy of the film
Details of any existing classification issued by an existing classification body, whether
within or outside the UK
A synopsis identifying the material within the film considered by the exhibitor to be likely to have
a bearing on the age limit for the audience for exhibition of the film
Such recommendation as may have been made by the film-maker upon age limit for the
intended audience for exhibition of the film
Proposal of age restriction by the applicant.

31.0

COUNTER TERRORISM

31.1

Crowded places, such as bars, pubs, nightclubs and music venues have been targets of acts of
terrorism across the UK and the world. The National Counter Terrorism Security Office (NaCTSO)
has produced guidance to operators of crowded places giving advice to operators to reduce the
threat of attack. Applicants and licence holders are encouraged to have regard to this guidance in
the design and operation of their premises.
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/3
74593/Pubs_and_Clubs_Reviewed.pdf

31.2

ACT (formerly known as Project Griffin) is the national counter terrorism awareness initiative for
organisations produced by NaCTSO to protect towns and cities and communities from the threat of
terrorism. ACT aims to advise raise awareness among security personnel, managers and other front
line staff about counter-terrorism measures so that everyone is better equipped to deal with security
challenges on a day-to-day basis and in the event of a major incident. ACT E-Learning guidance /
training is available at https://www.gov.uk/government/news/act-awareness-elearning

32.0

PUBLIC HEALTH

32.1

Section 104 of the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 amends the Licensing Act
2003 by adding local directors of public health to the list of responsible authorities, meaning that
local public health bodies are now consulted in respect of every licensing application processed by
the Licensing Authority.

32.2

As a responsible authority, the Council’s Public Health department can make representations in
relation to applications for the grant, variation, minor variation or review of premises licences and
club premises certificates. In addition, the Public Health department may themselves seek a review
of a premises licence. Any representation must be specific to the premises and cannot be a general
objection.

32.3

Representations should be evidence-based and should demonstrably refer to one or more of the
licensing objectives. As there is no licensing objective relating to public health, the Council’s Public
Health department must ensure representations are relevant to one of the four existing objectives.

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 47

36

DRAFT Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026

33.0

THE LICENSING PROCESS

33.1

The duties of the Licensing Authority under the Act may be carried out by the Licensing Committee,
by a Sub-committee or by one or more officers, acting under authority delegated to them by the
Authority. The scheme of delegations of licensing functions under the Act can be found at Appendix
B.

33.2

It is expected that many of the functions of the Authority will be largely administrative in nature, with
no perceived areas of contention. In the interests of efficiency and cost-effectiveness these will, for
the most part, be carried out by officers.

33.3

The Authority will expect applicants to address the Licensing Objectives in their Operating
Schedules, having regard to the type of premises, the licensable activities proposed, the operational
procedures, the nature of the location and the needs of the local community.

33.4

Applicants are also encouraged to make themselves aware of any relevant planning and transport
policies, tourism and cultural strategies or local crime and disorder strategies, and to have taken
these into account, where appropriate, in the formulation of their Operating Schedules.

33.5

The Authority will have regard to Guidance issued by the Home Office when determining
applications. In particular, account will be taken of the need to encourage and promote live music,
dancing and similar activities for the wider cultural benefit of the community as a whole, including
such diverse art forms as street entertainment and circuses. If representations are made concerning
the potential for disturbance in a particular neighbourhood, then those concerns will be carefully
balanced against the wider benefits to the community.

33.6

When attaching conditions to a licence, the Authority will be aware of the need to avoid, as far as
possible, measures which might deter live music, dancing or theatre through the imposition of
substantial indirect costs. It will also monitor the impact of licensing on regulated entertainment,
particularly live music and dancing.

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 48

37

DRAFT Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026

Appendices

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 49

38

DRAFT Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026
APPENDIX A – CONSULTEES AND RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITIES
Consultees
Greater Manchester Police
Greater Manchester Fire Service
RBC – Children Safeguarding Unit
RBC – Environmental Health Service
RBC – Trading Standards Service
RBC – Development Control Service
RBC – Public Health
RBC - Building Control Service
Home Office (Immigration)
Mark Foxley (Chairman of the Rochdale Pub and Club Watch)
Rochdale Safer Communities Partnership
Rochdale Town Centre Management
Middleton Town Centre Management
Rochdale Boroughwide Housing
RBC Councillors
J W Lees (Brewers) Ltd
Manchester Golf Club Ltd (representative of local holders of club certificates)
Hopwood Unionist Club (representative of local holders of club certificates)
Amber Taverns
Nectar Taverns
County Estate Pubs
Joseph Holt Ltd
Hyde's Brewery
Marstons PLC
Frederick Robinson Ltd
Compass Contract Services (UK)
Scottish & Newcastle Pub Company
Country Estate Management Pubs
Demar Services Ltd
Dingle Bank Management
Discount Booze Ltd
DPP Restaurants Ltd
Freshway
GP Retail Services Ltd
Lidl UK
Bargain Booze
Punch Taverns
Young & Smith Ltd
Tesco Licensing Team
Zoe Orford Ltd
Association of Convenience Stores
Association of License multiple retailers
Association of Town Centre Managers
British Board of Film Classification
British Beer & Pub Association
British Institute of Innkeeping
British Retail Consortium

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 50

39

DRAFT Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026
Department for Culture, Media and Sport
Cinema Exhibitors Association
Equity
Independent Street Arts Network
Institute of Licensing
Licensed Victuallers Association
National Pubwatch
National Association of Local Government Art Officers
NOCTIS
Daniel Thwaites
Mitchells & Butler Leisure Retail Ltd
JD Weatherspoons
Co-Operative Group PLC
Admiral taverns Ltd
Asda Stores Ltd
Aldi Stores Ltd
Flint Bishop Solicitors
Greens Solicitors
Hillyer McKeown Solicitors
Hammonds
Hall & Co
Shoosmiths
John Gaunt & Partners
JMC Licensing
Joelson Wilson LLP
JST Lawyers
Keoghs Solicitors
Kuit Solicitors
Kenneth Curtis & Co
Locking Solicitors
Lockett & Co
Maitland walker Solicitors
Lawrence Graham LLP
Licensed Solutions Ltd
Lees Solicitors
Licensing Legal
Lin & Co Solicitors
Lunn Groves Solicitors
Matrix Solicitors
McClellans Solicitors
Nick Dickinson Licensing Ltd
Norton & Co Solicitors
Pearson Hincliffe Solicitors
Pinsent Masons
Poppleston Allan
Ricksons Solicitors
Rasiah & Co
Steeles Solicitors
Sherrards Solicitors
Stephensons Solicitors
Silver Fox Licensing Consultants Ltd

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 51

40

DRAFT Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026
Trethowans
TLT Solicitors
Turbervilles Solicitors
Winckworth Sherwood
Waldron & Schofield
W Licensing Ltd
Anthony Collin LLP
Crutes LLP
Hallsalls
David Scholes Solicitors
Hill Dickenson
The Coach House Brewing Company
Hardys and Hansons PLC
G and J Greenall brewery
Greene King Retailing ltd
Rochdale Law Association
Rochdale Safer Communities Partnership
Rochdale Cultural Trust
Heywood Middleton & Rochdale Primary Care Trust
Rochdale Development Agency
Rochdale Development Agency
Berwin Leighton Pasiner
Bevan Brittan
Blake Lapthorn Tarlo Lyons
Bond Pearce LLP
Browne Jacobson LLP
Camden Management Services Ltd
Cobbetts
Cripps Harries Hall LLP
Daniel Hurd Associates
Davies Wallace Foyster
E A D Solicitors LLP
Edwards Geldard Solicitors
Forbes Solicitors
Ford & Warren
Fraser Brown Solicitors (Knights)
Freeth Cartwright
Forshaw Davies Solicitors
George Davies Solicitors
Gosschalks Solicitors
Gordons LLP
Harrison Clark LLP

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 52

41

DRAFT Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026
Responsible Authorities (Under the Act)
Jahangir Alom
Rochdale Borough Council
Licensing Service
Number One Riverside
Smith Street
Rochdale
OL16 1XU
Tel: 01706 924114
Email: licensing.reg@rochdale.gov.uk
Clive Smith
GM Fire & Rescue Service
Rochdale Central HQ
Rochdale Fire Station
Halifax Road
Rochdale
OL12 9BD
Tel: 01706 900110
Email:
P&PAdminTeamBuryOldh@manchesterfire.go
v.uk
Gary Parkinson
Rochdale Borough Council
Environmental Health, Health & Safety
Service
Number One Riverside
Smith Street
Rochdale
OL16 1XU
Tel: 01706 924138
Email: gary.parkinson@rochdale.gov.uk
jackie.hall@rochdale.gov.uk
Rochdale Borough Council
Safeguarding Children Unit
Number One Riverside
Smith Street
Rochdale
OL16 1XU
Tel: 01706 925395 / 925359
Email: lee-anne.agard@rochdale.gov.uk
Wendy Meston
Public Health
Number One Riverside
Smith Street
Rochdale
OL16 1XU
Tel: 01706 652839
Email: wendy.meston@rochdale.gov.uk

rochdale.gov.uk

PC Gary Grennan
Greater Manchester Police
Divisional HQ
The Holme
The Esplanade
Rochdale
OL16 1AG
Tel: 0161 856 8485
Email: rochdale.partnershipteam@gmp.police.uk
Louise Dent
Rochdale Borough Council
Environmental Health Noise Nuisance
Service
Number One Riverside
Smith Street
Rochdale
OL16 1XU
Tel: 01706 924137
Email: louise.dent@rochdale.gov.uk
Rochdale Borough Council
Planning Service
Number One Riverside
Smith Street
Rochdale
OL16 1XU
Tel: 01706 924134
Email:
Development.controlenforcement@rochdale.gov.uk

Kerry Ambrose
Rochdale Borough Council
Trading Standards Service
Number One Riverside
Smith Street
Rochdale
OL16 1XU
Tel: 01706 924167
Email: Trading.standards@rochdale.gov.uk
Home Office Immigration
Alcohol Licensing Team
Lunar House
40 Wellesley Road
Croydon
CR9 2BY
Email: Alcohol@homeoffice.gsi.gov.uk

Page 53

42

DRAFT Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026
APPENDIX B – EXERCISE AND DELEGATION OF FUNCTIONS
The Council Constitution delegates the governance arrangements in respect of the
Licensing Act 2003 to the Licensing Sub-Committee except Policy issues which are reserved to Council by
the Act. The delegated functions are exercised in accordance with this table:
Matter to be dealt with

Licensing Sub-Committee

Officers

Application for personal
licence

If a representation is made

If no representation is made

Application for personal
licence with unspent
convictions

All cases

Application for premises
licence/club premises
certificate

If a representation is made

If no representation is made

Application for provisional
statement

If a representation is made

If no representation is made

Application to vary
designated personal licence
holder

If a police representation

All other cases

Request to be removed as a
designated personal licence
holder

All cases

Application for transfer of
premises licence

If a police representation

All other cases

Application for Interim
Authorities

If police representation

All other cases

Application to review
premises licence/club
premises certificate

All cases

Decision on whether a
complaint is irrelevant,
frivolous, vexatious etc

rochdale.gov.uk

All cases

Page 54

43

DRAFT Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026

Decision to object when local
authority is a consultee and
not the lead authority

Decision to object when local
authority is a consultee and
not the lead authority

All cases

All cases

Determination of an objection All cases
to a temporary event notice

Determination of an
application to vary premises
licence at community
premises to include
alternative licence condition

If police objection

All other cases

Decision whether to consult
other responsible authorities
on minor variation application

All cases

Determination of application
for minor variation

All cases

Application for review by
Licensing Authority

All cases

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 55

44

DRAFT Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026
APPENDIX C – STATUTORY QUALIFYING CONDITIONS FOR CLUBS
The following qualifying conditions for clubs are extracted from the Licensing Act 2003.
62
(1)

The general conditions
The general conditions which a club must satisfy if it is to be a qualifying club in relation to a
qualifying club activity are the following.

(2)
(a)
(b)

Condition 1 is that under the rules of the club persons may not —
be admitted to membership, or
be admitted, as candidates for membership, to any of the privileges of membership, without an
interval of at least two days between their nomination or application for membership and their
admission.

(3)

Condition 2 is that under the rules of the club persons becoming members without prior nomination
or application may not be admitted to the privileges of membership without an interval of at least two
days between their becoming members and their admission.

(4)

Condition 3 is that the club is established and conducted in good faith as a club (see section 63).

(5)

Condition 4 is that the club has at least 25 members.

(6)

Condition 5 is that alcohol is not supplied, or intended to be supplied, to members on the premises
otherwise than by or on behalf of the club.

63
(1)

Determining whether a club is established and conducted in good faith
In determining for the purposes of condition 3 in subsection (4) of section 62 whether a club is
established and conducted in good faith as a club, the matters to be taken into account are those
specified in subsection (2).

(2)
(a)
(b)
(i)
(ii)

Those matters are —
any arrangements restricting the club’s freedom of purchase of alcohol;
any provision in the rules, or arrangements, under which —
money or property of the club, or
any gain arising from the carrying on of the club,
is or may be applied otherwise than for the benefit of the club as a whole or for charitable,
benevolent or political purposes;
the arrangements for giving members information about the finances of the club;
the books of account and other records kept to ensure the accuracy of that information;
the nature of the premises occupied by the club.

(c)
(d)
(e)
(3)

If a licensing authority decides for any purpose of this Act that a club does not satisfy condition 3 in
subsection (4) of section 62, the authority must give the club notice of the decision and of the
reasons for it.

64
(1)

The additional conditions for the supply of alcohol
The additional conditions which a club must satisfy if it is to be a qualifying club in relation to the
supply of alcohol to members or guests are the following.

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 56

45

DRAFT Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026
(2)

(a)
(b)
(c)

Additional condition 1 is that (so far as not managed by the club in general meeting or otherwise by
the general body of members) the purchase of alcohol for the club, and the supply of alcohol by the
club, are managed by a committee whose members:
are members of the club;
have attained the age of 18 years; and
are elected by the members of the club.
This subsection is subject to section 65 (which makes special provision for industrial and provident
societies, friendly societies etc.).

(3)

Additional condition 2 is that no arrangements are, or are intended to be, made for any person to
receive at the expense of the club any commission, percentage or similar payment on, or with
reference to, purchases of alcohol by the club.

(4)

Additional condition 3 is that no arrangements are, or are intended to be, made for any person
directly or indirectly to derive any pecuniary benefit from the supply of alcohol by or on behalf of the
club to members or guests, apart from —
any benefit accruing to the club as a whole, or
any benefit which a person derives indirectly by reason of the supply giving rise or contributing to a
general gain from the carrying on of the club.

(a)
(b)
65
(1)
(a)
(b)
(c)

(2)
(a)
(b)

Industrial and provident societies, friendly societies etc.
Subsection (2) applies in relation to any club which is —
a registered society, within the meaning of the Industrial and Provident Societies Act 1965 (c.
12)(see section 74(1) of that Act),
a registered society, within the meaning of the Friendly Societies Act 1974 (c. 46) (see section
111(1) of that Act), or
a registered friendly society, within the meaning of the Friendly Societies Act 1992 (c. 40) (see
section 116 of that Act).
Any such club is to be taken for the purposes of this Act to satisfy additional condition 1 in
subsection (2) of section 64 if and to the extent that:
the purchase of alcohol for the club, and
the supply of alcohol by the club,
are under the control of the members or of a committee appointed by the members.

(3)
(a)
(b)

References in this Act, other than this section, to —
subsection (2) of section 64, or
additional condition 1 in that subsection, are references to it as read with subsection (1) of this
section.

(4)

Subject to subsection (5), this Act applies in relation to an incorporated friendly society as it applies
in relation to a club, and accordingly —
the premises of the society are to be treated as the premises of a club,
the members of the society are to be treated as the members of the club, and
anything done by or on behalf of the society is to be treated as done by or on behalf of the club.

(a)
(b)
(c)
(5)

(a)

In determining for the purposes of section 61 whether an incorporated friendly society is a qualifying
club in relation to a qualifying club activity, the society is to be taken to satisfy the following
conditions —
condition 3 in subsection (4) of section 62,

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 57

46

DRAFT Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026
(b)
(c)

condition 5 in subsection (6) of that section,
the additional conditions in section 64.

(6)

In this section “incorporated friendly society” has the same meaning as in the Friendly Societies Act
1992 (see section 116 of that Act).

66
(1)

Miners’ welfare institutes
Subject to subsection (2), this Act applies to a relevant miners’ welfare institute as it applies to a
club, and accordingly —
the premises of the institute are to be treated as the premises of a club,
the persons enrolled as members of the institute are to be treated as the members of the club, and
anything done by or on behalf of the trustees or managers in carrying on the institute is to be treated
as done by or on behalf of the club.

(a)
(b)
(c)

(2)

(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(3)
(a)
(b)
(4)
(a)
(b)
(i)
(ii)

(5)
(a)
(b)
(i)
(ii)
(c)
(i)
(ii)

(6)

In determining for the purposes of section 61 whether a relevant miners’ welfare institute is a
qualifying club in relation to a qualifying club activity, the institute is to be taken to satisfy the
following conditions —
condition 3 in subsection (4) of section 62,
condition 4 in subsection (5) of that section,
condition 5 in subsection (6) of that section,
the additional conditions in section 64.
For the purposes of this section —
“miners’ welfare institute” means an association organised for the social well-being and recreation of
persons employed in or about coal mines (or of such persons in particular), and
a miners’ welfare institute is “relevant” if it satisfies one of the following conditions.
The first condition is that —
the institute is managed by a committee or board, and
at least two thirds of the committee or board consists —
partly of persons appointed or nominated, or appointed or elected from among persons nominated,
by one or more licensed operators within the meaning of the Coal Industry Act 1994 (c. 21), and
partly of persons appointed or nominated, or appointed or elected from among persons nominated,
by one or more organisations representing persons employed in or about coal mines.
The second condition is that —
the institute is managed by a committee or board, but
the making of —
an appointment or nomination falling within subsection (4)(b)(i), or
an appointment or nomination falling within subsection (4)(b)(ii), is not practicable or would not be
appropriate, and
at least two thirds of the committee or board consists —
partly of persons employed, or formerly employed, in or about coal mines, and
partly of persons appointed by the Coal Industry Social Welfare Organisation or a body or person to
which the functions of that Organisation have been transferred under section 12(3) of the Miners’
Welfare Act 1952 (c. 23).
The third condition is that the premises of the institute are held on trusts to which section 2 of the
Recreational Charities Act 1958 (c. 17) applies.

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 58

47

DRAFT Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026
APPENDIX D – THE HYPNOTISM ACT 1952
Conditions
1. The artiste shall be competent in the inducement of, and reversal of, a state of hypnosis.
2. No exhibition, demonstration, or performance of hypnotism shall involve any person under the age of 18
years.
3. The exhibition, demonstration or performance of hypnotism shall not, either directly or indirectly, induce,
suggest to, or direct any person to behave in a manner which is either a) obscene, indecent, or offensive, and/or
b) aggressive, and/or
c) demeaning to an extent which would be unacceptable to the
ordinary common person.
4. Any form of induced sleep or trance, under which any person is placed in the course of the exhibition,
demonstration, or performance of hypnotism, shall be fully reversed immediately after that person’s part in
the exhibition, demonstration, or performance is concluded.
5. These Conditions form part of the authorisation, and shall be monitored/enforced by a responsible
member of the management of the premises.
6. The hypnotist must produce satisfactory evidence of current Public Liability Insurance cover, (to a
minimum level of £1,000,000), to the management of the venue prior to the performance taking place.

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 59

48

DRAFT Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026

Rochdale Borough Council
Number One Riverside
Smith Street
Rochdale OL16 1YH

rochdale.gov.uk
01706 647474
council@rochdale.gov.uk
rochdale.gov.uk

Page 60

49

Schedule of Responses to draft Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026
Reference

Respondent

Email received RBC Cllr Janet
24 July 2020
Emsley

Comments

Action Taken / Comments

‘it’s very wordy and may need an overhaul’;

Due regard has been given to the comments.
The Licensing Act 2003 is a lengthy and
complex piece of legislation. The statement
of licensing policy is intending to reflect the
statutory provisions of the Act and attempts
to provide comprehensive information and
guidance to applicants in their submission of
applications, etc.

Page 61

‘typos – Suspension of Premises Licences / Club Premises
Certificates should read Suspension of Premises’ Licences
and Club Premises’ certificates and every other reference
should be apostrophised’;

Draft policy can be amended to correct the
typos/grammatical errors that have been
kindly identified.

‘not sure if I am happy’ with the definition of a sexrelated nature (e.g. topless waitresses, striptease, table
dancing). ‘This assumes that topless females are sex
related but males aren’t’;

The examples of sex-related nature has been
lifted from Government guidance, but the
reference to ‘topless waitresses’ can be
removed.

‘does it need an extra bit about reserving the right to do
everything differently in a pandemic?’

The practices and processes under the
Licensing Act 2003 are statutory and acting
outside can be deemed ultra vires. The
Licensing Authority is unable to do anything
differently in light of the COVID-19
pandemic, unless there is a change in

primary legislation or there is specific set of
guidance provided by the Government to all
local authorities.
The Licensing Authority seeks to avoid any
duplication with other statutory/regulatory
systems. It is already a legal obligation to
have Health & Safety risk assessments under
existing legislation; therefore the policy
should not be amended in this respect.

Page 62

Agenda Item 7

Report to Planning and Licensing
Date of Meeting
Portfolio

Report Author
Public/Private Document
Application: 20/00805/FUL

Township: Middleton

Applicant: Laaj enterprises LTD

5th November 2020
Councillor Carol Wardle
Cabinet
Member
for
Planning, Development &
Housing
John Van Eker
Public
Ward: North Middleton

Agent: Mr Thomas DiFelice

Site Address: 5 Market Place Middleton M24 6AE

Proposal:

Change of use from financial and professional services (A2) to nightclub (Sui
Generis).

SITE LOCATION

Page 63

DELEGATION
1.1

The application falls to be determined by the Planning and Licencing
Committee by reason of it having been called in by Ward Cllrs Rowbotham
and Nolan on the 13th of August 2020.
PROPOSAL SUMMARY

2.1

Full planning permission is sought for the change of use of the unit from an
A2 use to a nightclub (sui generis).
RECOMMENDATION

3.1

It is recommended that the Planning and Licencing Committee resolves to
GRANT planning permission.
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION

4.1

The proposal would bring a vacant unit back into use and therefore contribute
to the vitality of Middleton Town Centre without being detrimental to the
operations of surrounding occupiers. As such the application is considered to
accord with Core Strategy policies E1, DM1 and G9 and the NPPF.

Page 64

SITE
The application relates to no. 5 Market Place in Middleton, a four storey Local
Interest Building currently occupied by a branch of the Royal Bank of Scotland. The
majority of the building was rebuilt in brick in the early 1990s but the building retains
its stone façade which contains several of its original features. The building is
located within the Middleton Town Centre Conservation Area; with the Council’s
Conservation Area Appraisal (CAA) identifying the significance of the conservation
area as being through the grouping of a number of listed buildings including arts and
crafts buildings by the renowned architect Edgar Wood.
The adjoined building to the west is the Edgar Wood designed Grade II listed No. 3
Market Place which was built in 1892 and listed in 1987. This building now forms
part of the Asheton Arms public House which is located at the junction of Long
Street and Market Place. The adjacent building to the east includes Nos. 7-11
Market Place and is an attractive Local Interest Building. Surrounding land uses are
predominantly commercial with Middleton Arena located across Market Place and a
public car park to the south The immediate street scene is heavily influenced by the
by the Long Street Roundabout and associated pedestrian subway infrastructure.
PROPOSAL
The application seeks to change the use of the building from an A2 use to that of a
nightclub (sui generis). No external alterations are proposed as part of this
application and the installation of any external signage would be necessary by
means of an advertisement consent application.
A number of internal alterations are proposed to enable the subsequent use
however these are not relevant to the determination of this application.
The layout of the proposed nightclub will see the layout of the building retained with
the ground floor area to be used as the primary nightclub area with bar and a private
VIP function space to the rear at ground floor also. The total area of the ground floor
is approximately 200 square metres in total. The existing central staircase is to be
retained which will provide access to the first floor which consists of toilet areas
(approx. 23 square metres), storage areas (approx. 21 square metres), staff room
(approx. 26 square metres) and an additional private VIP function space measuring
approx. 63.5 square metres. Remaining floor space to first floor is consumed by
access corridors as well as the staircase area.
The basement and second floor of the property are not proposed to be used in
association with the proposed nightclub use.
PLANNING POLICY
Local
Adopted Rochdale Core Strategy (2016)
The Core Strategy policies that are relevant to the assessment of this application are
as follows:
SO1

Delivering a more prosperous economy

Page 65

E1

Establishing thriving town, district and local centres

SO3
P2
P3

Improving design, image and quality of place
Improving Landscape, Character and Heritage
Improving design of new development

SO4
G9

Promoting a greener environment
Reducing the impact of pollution, contamination and land instability

SO5
T2

Improving accessibility and delivering sustainable transport
Improving accessibility

DM1

General development requirements

SD1

Delivering sustainable development

Saved Policies of the Rochdale UDP
The following policies remain extant and relevant to the determination of this
application following the adoption Rochdale Core Strategy in October 2016.
G/D/1
G/S/1

Defined Urban Area
Hierarchy and Role of Centres

BE/17

New Development Affecting Conservation Areas Policy to be read in
conjunction with CS Policy P2 until replaced by Site Allocations or other DPD.

National
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)
RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
18/00599/FUL
Removal of the branded fascia, face-fixed signage and
projecting sign above ground floor and adjacent to the entrance and
repair stonework behind. Removal of the automatic teller machine and
a stainless steel receptacle for ATM receipts below and replace with a
new window and stone sub cill-to restore the window and cill to their
former condition. Approved with conditions 06 September 2018.
12/A5970

Installation Of One Internally Illuminated Fascia Sign, One Externally
Illuminated Projecting Box Sign And One Internally Illuminated ATM
Header Sign To Front Elevation Of Premises. Granted STC May 2012

05/A5461

Externally illuminated fascia and wall mounted signs and externally
illuminated projecting box sign. Granted STC January 2006

01/D39522

Alterations to front elevation to include improved access for the
disabled including installation of lighting facilities. Granted STC
January 2002

97/D43159

Installation of 90cam wall mounted satellite dish. Granted June 1997

Page 66

89/D23310

Partial demolition of bank premises (front façade retained). Granted
STC June 1989

89/D23309

Rebuilding of bank premises with retention of existing front façade.
Granted STC June 1989

83/D15322

Two storey extension to rear of existing bank premises. Granted STC
July 1983

80/D11858

Fire escape. Granted STC March 1989

CONSULTATION RESPONSES
Conservation and Design
As the proposed works do not seek to make any external alterations and propose
only minor internal alterations there are no comments or objections raised in
response to this application.
This being said, it is worth highlighting that any subsequent application for the
erection of signage at the premises must include sympathetic designs, materials and
finished to complement the aesthetic of this non-designated heritage asset itself, the
adjoining listed building and the wider conservation area
Highways and Engineering
Given the Town Centre location for this development there are no objections to this
scheme.
Environmental Health
This section has no objections to the proposals in respects of noise. The site is
located in a town centre area subject to existing night time entertainment and
elevated noise levels.
Licensing
I understand that 5 Market Place is a stand alone / separate premises – situated
adjacent to 3 Market Place.
In the event that we (Licensing Authority) receive ANY application for a premises
licence for 5 Market Place – I can confirm that any such application would be subject
to a 28 day consultation period during which time Interested parties (Local Residents
/ Councillors) and Responsible Authorities (GMP, Env Health, Trading Standards,
GM Fire Rescue etc) would be able to submit representations against or in favour of
any such application. Any such representations could ultimately be then considered
by the Licensing Committee.
The granting of planning permission would therefore be no guarantee that the
premises would necessarily achieve licensed status. In the event that planning
permission were refused – then the business could not operate or be licensed for the
retail of alcohol / licensable activities.

Page 67

On this occasion it is proper for the Licensing Authority not to formally comment on
any planning application and I offer the above information as general information as
to process should planning permission be granted or refused.
Taxi Licencing
No comments received.
Greater Manchester Police
No comments received.
REPRESENTATIONS
A consultation exercise was carried out with regard to this proposal with 46
neighbour notification letters sent out. As a result of this exercise a total of 38 no.
objections have been received alongside 2 no. neutral letters of representation,
details of which are summarised below;










Concerns about the impact of any development on the exterior of the property
and the potential to have a negative effect on the surrounding heritage assets
of the conservation area. In particular, the signage, decoration and lighting of
the exterior façade
It is a residential area with houses and flats adjacent/near to site. There would
inevitably be a noise nuisance when the venue is open. This potential for
night time disturbance would be particularly serious for nearby families with
children
Parking facilities limited outside venue
Extra strain on police resources for dealing with incidents, bearing in mind
that due to Covid19 factors police and emergency services would be
stretched even further
Proposal not in keeping with general cultural/historical character of local area.
Nightclub will directly lead to antisocial behaviour
The impact of signage and any changes to the external appearance will have
a knock on effect on the setting of Edgar Wood's Grade II* listed building next
door. The impact on the conservation area needs to be fully assessed

ANALYSIS
Principle of Development
The NPPF introduced a presumption in favour of sustainable development and
advises that planning should aim for a balance of land uses within their area so that
people can be encouraged to minimise journey lengths for employment, shopping,
leisure, education and other activities.
The application site lies within Middleton Town Centre as defined on the proposals
map under saved policy G/S/1 of the Rochdale Unitary Development Plan. Policy
E1 of the adopted Rochdale Core Strategy sets out that the Council will focus retail,
leisure, cultural, office, residential and other development to promote the viability
and vitality of all the Borough’s town centres to maintain them as thriving and

Page 68

sustainable centres and the preferred shopping and leisure destinations for people
living, working and visiting the Borough.
It should also be noted that subsequent to the submission of this application, The
Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) (Amendment) (England) Regulations
2020 (SI 2020 No.757) has been introduced by the government (20/07/2020), with
this having taken effect on 1 September 2020. The new Regulations make radical
changes to the 1987 Use Classes Order and these changes now sit alongside the
recent additions to permitted development rights, with the aim being to support the
high street revival and allow greater flexibility to change uses within town centres
without the need for express planning permission.
The Regulations introduce three new use classes:





Class E (Commercial, business and service) – including retail, restaurant,
office, financial/professional services, indoor sports, medical and nursery
uses along with “any other services which it is appropriate to provide in a
commercial, business or service locality”;
Class F.1 (Learning and non-residential institutions) – including nonresidential educational uses, and use as a museum, art gallery, library, public
hall, religious institution or law court; and
Class F.2 (Local community) – including use as a shop of no more than 280
sqm mostly selling essential goods, including food and at least 1km from
another similar shop, and use as a community hall, area for outdoor sport,
swimming pool or skating rink.

It is therefore apparent from the above that Parts A and D of the original Schedule to
the Use Classes Order have been entirely deleted, with Use Classes A1, A2, A3,
parts of D1 and D2 subsumed into new Use Class E along with Class B1.
With this in mind, the application has been assessed within the context of the new
Use Classes Order, with the existing use class being determined as Use Class E
and the proposed use class being represented as sui generis.
The proposed nightclub would be located in close proximity to the existing Assheton
Arms Public House and as such would be complimentary in terms of the type of
service offered. The existing retail development of Market Place does not include a
variety of A1 uses and the location of the nightclub at the edge of the main frontage
town centre is not considered to result in a loss of activity for the other uses. Indeed,
users of the facility may well use the other local amenities in addition and the
primary hours of operation in the evening would contribute to an increased amount
of activity and sense of vitality once the shops within the main centre have closed.
Therefore it is considered that the application proposal is acceptable in principle and
in accordance with the relevant parts Core Strategy policy E1 and the requirements
of the NPPF.
Impact on Heritage Assets and Visual Amenity
Policy P3 of the Core Strategy acknowledges that good design will improve the
image and attractiveness of the borough as a place to live, work and visit. Policy P2
of the Council’s Core Strategy seeks to protect the Borough’s heritage by

Page 69

conserving, enhancing and promoting key heritage assets, both statutory and nonstatutory, including consideration of their wider settings. Policy DM1 states that
proposals should be compatible with surrounding land uses.
In relation to the building itself, Officers recognise that this unit is not a designated
heritage asset, however there is significance attached to its architectural appearance
and its contribution to the character of the conservation area.
In this case the proposal would seek to make the building and its current use more
viable and therefore would result in a positive impact upon the building and
conservation area by retaining an active use of this now vacant building.
The works proposed are logical and modest in their scale and involve a change of
use with internal reordering of existing space. There are no external works proposed
which impact the building, its setting or wider conservation area.
The use of the building as a nightclub would entail noise generation and active,
evening footfall. These in themselves would have little impact upon the character of
this conservation area in that its character is already associated with commercial
activities, alongside existing drinking establishments. Officers do not consider that
the use would result in any undue detrimental impacts upon the wider heritage
assets of this location.
As no external alterations to the building are proposed, the proposal is not
considered to affect the visual amenities of the wider Middleton Conservation Area.
The application is therefore acceptable in the above regard and in accordance with
policies the relevant parts of Core Strategy policies P3, DM1 and the NPPF.
Impact on Surrounding Occupiers and Public Safety
Paragraph 127 of the National Planning Policy Framework advises that planning
decisions should result in places with a high standard of amenity for existing and
future users. Policy DM1 of the Core Strategy states that proposals should
adversely affect the amenity of residents and be compatible with surrounding land
uses. Policy G9 seeks to developments that would lead to an unacceptable increase
in pollution.
As has previously been established, the proposed use is considered appropriate
within a town centre location where drinking establishments, restaurants, financial
institutions, retail and wider business activities are commonplace. The nearest
residential properties to the application site are sited approximately 50 metres away
at 71-73 Long Street (10 single occupancy properties). The unit is sited sufficient
distance from any residential properties and the use proposed would not cause any
noise and disturbance, over and above that already permitted at the site.
Many of the objections submitted do however relate directly toward the potential for
antisocial behaviour associated with the use of the premises as a nightclub, however
it is contended within this report that antisocial behaviour would not be a material
consideration for this assessment in that such issues would be controlled by
alternative legislation and enforced either by law enforcement and / or environmental
health enforcement. The Council’s Licensing Officer has also noted that the granting
of a premises licence will be subject to a separate application process.

Page 70

Whilst every effort has been made to obtain a consultation response from Greater
Manchester Police, no comments have been made on this application. For the
reasons listed above the principle and perceived impacts on neighbouring uses of
the proposed change of use is considered acceptable at this location.
As such it considered that the proposed use is appropriate for the site and the
application accords with the relevant parts of policies DM1 and G9 of the adopted
Core Strategy and the NPPF.
Highways, Access and Parking
Policy T2 of the Core Strategy acknowledges that development that offers greater
access for all forms of travel will assist the borough's continuous improvement to
becoming more sustainable, healthier, greener and prosperous. Development and
infrastructure proposal are required to satisfy the Council’s accessibility hierarchy
and in all circumstances, the safety, accessibility and amenity of those who live or
have business in the area will have priority, while providing reliable journey times for
those travelling through.
Paragraphs 108 and 109 of the NPPF require that safe and suitable access to a site
can be achieved for all users and that development should only be prevented or
refused on highways grounds if there would be an unacceptable impact on highway
safety, or the residual cumulative impacts of the road network would be severe.
The proposed use of the unit as a nightclub will not amount to a significant
intensification when compared to the previous usage. The development is located
within Middleton Town Centre which is well served by public transport and there is
ample parking located across the road from the application site. Given the town
centre location, single trip generation is unlikely, with users of the centre likely to
utilise additional local amenities. The Council’s Highways Officer is satisfied that the
change of use can be easily accommodated for a Highways perspective given the
town centre location.
Whilst no comments have been received from the Council’s Taxi Licencing team the
proposal complies with policy T2 and given the town centre location, the proposed
development is appropriately placed to accommodate this form of transport given the
late night nature of the intended use.
The proposal is therefore considered to meet the requirements of Policy T2 of the
Core Strategy and the National Planning Policy Framework.

RECOMMENDATION
GRANT planning permission subject to the following conditions:
1

The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the
date of this permission.
Reason: Required to be imposed by Section 91 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 (as amended).

Page 71

2

The development hereby approved shall be fully implemented in accordance
with the approved plans and specifications, which are referenced as follows
Block Plan
5MAR_PRO1, Proposed Basement and Second Floor Plan
5MAR_PROFIRSTFLOOR, Proposed First Floor Plan
5MAR_PROGROUNDFLOOR, Proposed Ground Floor Plan
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of
development in accordance with the policies contained within the adopted Core
Strategy and the National Planning Policy Framework.

3

The use hereby permitted shall not be open to customers, nor shall any
services be available or any customers remain on the premises outside the
hours of 11.00am to 11.00pm on Monday to Thursday, 11.00am to 02.00am
Friday and Saturday and 12.00pm to 10.30pm on Sundays.
Reason: In the interests of the amenity of neighbouring occupiers and to
prevent nuisance arising in accordance with Policies G9 and DM1 of the
adopted Rochdale Core Strategy and the National Planning Policy Framework.

4

The permitted use of the premises as a nightclub shall not take place other than
within the Ground and First floors of the building as identified on the approved
plans. For the avoidance of doubt there shall be no access to the public to the
basement and second floor.
Reason: In the interests of the amenity of neighbouring occupiers and to
prevent nuisance arising in accordance with Policies G9 and DM1 of the
adopted Rochdale Core Strategy and the National Planning Policy Framework.

Page 72

Agenda Item 8
Report to Planning and Licensing Committee
Date of Meeting
Portfolio

5th November 2020
Councillor Carol Wardle,
Cabinet Member for
Planning, Development
& Housing
Ryan Killeen
Public

Report Author
Public/Private Document
Application: 19/01240/FUL

Township: Rochdale

Appeal Reference: APP/P4225/D/20/3247472

Ward: Spotland

Decision level: Delegated

Site Address: 115 Spotland Road, Rochdale, OL12 6PJ
Proposal: Prior notification for change of use from offices to 15 apartments
Applicant: Mr Yasir Beg

Agent: Mrs Pamela Chesterman

Planning Inspectorate Decision: Appeal Dismissed – 22 October 2020
 The application was refused as it failed to comply with Schedule 2, Part 3, Class O of
the General Permitted Development Order, with particular regard to paragraph O.1(b)
 O.1(b) does not permit the change of use from B1 Offices to C3 residential where the
building was not used for the class B1(a) (offices) use on 29 May 2013, or in the case
of a building which was in use before that date but not in use on that date, when it
was last in use.
 The appellant contended that the lawful use of the building is B1(a) and have
occupied the premises since 2007. They supplied various documentation including
non-domestic rates, court summons, floor layouts, forms for small business rates
reliefs and payment schedules for rates.
 The Inspector highlighted the council’s evidence which highlighted a planning
application restricting use for the purposes of A1 and A2, and a subsequently
dismissed appeal to vary this condition. In the previous appeal decision, the inspector
proceeded on the basis that the premises were lawfully used for purposes within
class A2
 License agreements for the ground floor, first floor and second floor included specific
parameters as to how the property is used and services. The inspector considered
that the A2 use was acknowledged by the appellant in these agreements, and the
inspector was not satisfied that there was no knowledge to some extent of the
implementation of the original permissions granted for A2 use.
 The inspector concluded that on the basis of the evidence provided, insufficient
evidence has been provided to demonstrate that on the balance of probability the
appeal property was not solely office use, Class B1(a) on 29 May 2013 or when it
was last in use before this date.

Page 73

Report to Planning and Licensing Committee
Date of Meeting
Portfolio

5th November 2020
Councillor Carol Wardle,
Cabinet Member for
Planning, Development
& Housing
Michael Atkinson-Smith
Public

Report Author
Public/Private Document
Application: 20/00411/AGR

Township: Heywood

Appeal Reference: APP/P4225/W/20/325924

Ward:

Decision level: Fully Delegated

Site Address: New Birtle Farm, Birtle Road, Birtle, Bury BL9 6UT
Proposal: Application for prior approval for the erection of an agricultural building for the
storage of agricultural machinery and equipment
Applicant: Mr M. Tindale
Agent: Mr Steven Hartley
Planning Inspectorate Decision: Appeal Dismissed – 28 September 2020
 The Inspector noted the Council’s concern with respect the definition of a ‘separate’
land parcel and contested the established view that a separate land parcel (as
defined by the Rural Land Registry Land Parcel Records) related solely to the extent
of each individual defined parcel.
 The Inspector took into account two court decisions that were provided by the
appellant and considered that the physical and functional relationship between
separate land parcels was sufficient to conclude that they were not distinctly
separate, but indeed therefore contiguous, in effect removing any definition of a ‘land
parcel’ and leaving it open to judgement.
 The Inspector agreed with the LPA, however, that insufficient evidence had been
provided within the application to demonstrate that the development would be
reasonably necessary for the purposes of agriculture.
 The LPA questioned the age of the 2006 holding registration document relating to a
flock of sheep which were not present at the time of the case officer’s site visit, but
the Inspector found no reason to contest the appellant’s came that such a document
requires renewing on a regular basis.
 However, the Inspector noted that the holding registration document did not
expressly refer to the area of land of the NGF numbers the holding relates to, and no
detailed evidenced of current activities that would constitute an existing trade of
business in relation to hay making and cattle farming that appear to be historic.
 On this basis, the Inspector concluded that they were unable to find that the
agricultural land met the requirements of Schedule 2 Part 6, Class A of the Order,
and that the building would be reasonably necessary for the purposes of agriculture.
As such the agricultural building would not be permitted development under
Schedule 2 Part 6, Class A of the GPDO and the Inspector dismissed the appeal.

Page 74

Report to Planning and Licensing Committee
Date of Meeting
Portfolio

5th November 2020
Councillor Carol Wardle,
Cabinet Member for
Planning, Development
& Housing
Ryan Killeen
Public

Report Author
Public/Private Document
Application: 20/00538/HOUS

Township: Pennines

Appeal Reference: APP/P4225/D/20/3260659

Ward: Smallbridge Firgrove

Decision level: Delegated

Site Address: 383 Albert Royds Street, Rochdale, OL16 3AA
Proposal: Single storey and two storey rear extension and alterations to front and side
elevation fenestration - Resubmission of 19/01472/HOUS
Applicant: Mrs Sana Yaqoob
Agent: Mr Jamil Ahmed
Planning Inspectorate Decision: Appeal Dismissed – 22 October 2020
 The application was refused due to the extension resulting in inadequate light and
outlook for a bedroom, with only an obscured window serving a first floor ‘Study’ that
had significant potential to be used as a bedroom. This was considered contrary to
the Council’s Guidelines and Standards for Residential Development SPD, policies
DM1 and P3 of the Rochdale Core Strategy and the NPPF.
 The Inspector highlighted that the whilst the SPD does exclude box rooms and
studies as habitable rooms, it is only supplementary guidance and given an increase
in home working, particularly as a result of the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic, they
saw no reason as to why a study should not be considered a habitable room in which
future occupants are likely to spend considerable amounts of time.
 With no window to serve the proposed study/store room, the Inspector stated that the
space would have no independent source of daylight and no outlook, resulting in a
dark, oppressive and claustrophobic environment for its future occupiers.
 As a condition requiring an obscure glazed window would not address the lack of
outlook, the Inspector concluded that it would fail to overcome the harm identified
and would not provide acceptable living conditions for future occupants, with regard
to daylight and outlook. This would be contrary to policy DM1 of the Adopted Core
Strategy and National Planning Policy Framework.
 Other matters included the appellant’s assertions that the overall design of the
proposal would be proportionate and in keeping with the overall character of the
immediate area, and would provide additional accommodation to meet family needs.
The Inspector considered that these matters did not outweigh the harm identified.

Page 75

Report to Planning and Licensing Committee
Date of Meeting
Portfolio

Report Author
Public/Private Document
Application: 19/00372/HOUS

Township: Rochdale

5th November 2020
Councillor Carol Wardle,
Cabinet Member for
Planning, Development
& Housing
Mubeen Patel
Public
Ward: Balderstone And
Kirkholt

Appeal References:
Appeal A: APP/P4225/C/19/3235618 –
Enforcement Notice
Decision level: Delegated
Appeal B: APP/P4225/W/19/3235619 –
Planning Refusal
Application for Costs - Refused
Site Address: 663 Oldham Road, Rochdale OL16 4PE
Proposal: Formation of vehicle access including alterations to existing side boundary
walls, new double front entrance gates, building up of site levels along with associated
landscaping and erection of front porch (part retrospective) - Resubmission of
17/01494/HOUS.
Applicant: Mr Zain Ali
Agent: Inspire Planning Solutions Ltd
Planning Inspectorate Decision: Appeal Hearing – Planning Allowed and Enforcement
Notice Quashed – 09th October 2020


The site comprises a two storey detached residential dwelling, it is set back from Oldham Road by
approximately thirty metres and has a relatively large front garden area which had different levels, with
a sunken middle section which then rose again in front of the house. Neighbouring residential
properties in the immediate vicinity are similarly set back from Oldham Road with sunken garden
areas to the front.
 The above application was refused by the Council for two reasons, in terms of character and
appearance the Council viewed that the development by reason of its hard and industrial form and
scale would be visually intrusive, dominant and incongruous in relation to the adjacent residential
landscaped garden areas and be harmful to the character of the adjacent high quality residential street
scene. In terms of Highways safety, the Council viewed that the proposed vehicular access onto the
A671 Oldham Road would interfere with the free flow of traffic and give rise to additional vehicular
turning movements, thereby reducing its effectiveness. Furthermore, the positioning of the access in
close proximity to a bus stop, marked bus hatching and cycle lane, would present a danger to highway
and pedestrian safety and result in a serious risk of accidents.
 Some works including ‘engineering operations comprising the formation, laying out and construction of
a means of access to a classified road, and the excavation, raising, levelling and re-grading of the
front garden area to form an area of hardstanding’ have already taken place, subsequently an
Enforcement Notice had been issued by the Council.
Character and Appearance
 As part of the application, the applicant had submitted a landscaping scheme that included hedge
planting, tree planting close to the front boundary, whilst the hardstanding areas would comprise a
variety of block paving and gravel.
 The inspector viewed that the proposal includes an extensive hard surfaced area, but does not see
this as unusual or necessarily at odds with residential surroundings, nor need such a large area be
visually intrusive or incongruous within its residential setting. He goes onto state that the well-

Page 76

considered bespoke design and layout of the landscaping would screen the development from existing
viewpoints, including Oldham Road and the adjacent residential properties to an acceptable degree.
 The inspector goes onto state that the development would be different from front garden areas either
side and in the immediate vicinity, but different is not harmful in this case.
 In terms of character and appearance the inspector concludes by expressing that the development
would certainly be different from property frontages in the locality but overall it is considered to be well
designed, taking account of the need to soften the hardstanding areas with a variety of soft
landscaping, including trees, shrubs, grass, hedges and boundaries which will help to integrate the
development within its attractive residential surroundings and ensure that it makes a positive
contribution to the area.
Highways Safety
 Oldham Road is a classified highway which is a quality bus corridor and has a dedicated cycle lane.
The Council argued that vehicular accesses which lead off main roads give rise to complex traffic
movements and affect highway conditions and safety. Drivers turning in and out of such accesses
cause other vehicles to stop and give way which interrupts the free flow of traffic and increases the
risk of conflict between highway users.
 The inspector highlights evidence which shows that most accidents recorded along Oldham Road are
caused by vehicles joining from side streets. The Council contends that the proposed development
would result in there being an additional access point onto Oldham Road adjacent to a bus stop.
However, the inspector states that the evidence confirmed that there to be no accident incidents in this
particular locality. Furthermore, there is no dispute that vehicles could turn successfully within the site
meaning that vehicles may enter and egress the site in forward gear
 The inspector goes onto to state that the development would cause a small increase in the number of
turning movements and there is insufficient evidence to indicate that it would result in disruption to the
free flow of traffic to a degree that would reduce the effectiveness of Oldham Road.
 In terms of the Bus Shelter adjacent, the inspector states that this has clear side panels and the
structure itself causes insignificant hindrance to visibility. The council also argued that people and
those congregating at the Bus stop which is near a high school would obstruct visibility sufficiently for
them to cause an obstruction to visibility. The inspector rules that the bus stop in question is a
relatively infrequently used quiet stop with very low passenger numbers waiting at the stop and
therefore not a significant threat to the safety of highway users.
 The Council had also given consideration to a previously dismissed appeal at no. 657 Oldham Road
about 15 years ago, but the inspector viewed the site context, including highways conditions to be
likely to have been different including the planning context and development plan, the presumption
now is in favour of sustainable development.
 The inspector concludes that the development would not have a harmful effect on highway safety and
sees it necessary to include a condition to restrict the parking to no more than 2 cars in order to
ensure turning areas are kept freely available.
Enforcement
 Given that the planning appeal is allowed, the breach of planning alleged under the enforcement
notice has also been quashed which namely included engineering operations comprising the
formation, laying out and construction of a means of access to a classified road, and the excavation,
raising, levelling and re-grading of the front garden area to form an area of hardstanding on land.
Costs
 An application for costs was made against the Council relating to issues of ‘Failing to produce
evidence’, ‘Vague, generalised or inaccurate assertions’, ‘Not adopting a more helpful approach’ and
‘Poor ongoing case management’.
 The inspector viewed that in relation to the claims made by the appellant, the Council did not behave
unreasonably in terms of the evidence it had provided, did not agree with the appellant that the
Council has used vague, generalised or inaccurate assertions to support their case. Furthermore, the
inspector found that the Council had not behaved unreasonably on ‘adopting a more helpful approach’
and no evidence was provided by the appellant in terms of the Council’s alleged lack of cooperation
and better ongoing case management.
 In concluding the inspector stated that unreasonable behaviour resulting in unnecessary or wasted
expense, as described in the Planning Practice Guidance, has not been demonstrated.

Page 77

Report to Planning and Licensing Committee
Date of Meeting
Portfolio

5th November 2020
Councillor Carol Wardle,
Cabinet Member for
Planning, Development
& Housing
Ryan Killeen
Public

Report Author
Public/Private Document
Application: 19/01240/FUL

Township: Rochdale

Appeal Reference: APP/P4225/D/20/3247472

Ward: Spotland

Decision level: Delegated

Site Address: 173 Rooley Moor Road,
Proposal: Proposed rear dormer and installation of rooflight to front elevation Resubmission of 19/00765/FUL
Applicant: Mr Khalid Ayub
Agent: Mr M Farooq
Planning Inspectorate Decision: Appeal Allowed – 10 September 2020
 The application was refused due to the effect the proposed rear dormer would have
on the character and appearance of the area, with particular regard to the setting of
the nearby Grade II listed Spotland Methodist Church and the Spotland Fold
Conservation area.
 The inspector considered the area to derive its significance from the traditional
cottages, streets and houses, as well as from the presence of the church. This was
considered to be adequately preserved as the proposed rear dormer would not have
been seen in longer views of the frontages.
 Other than views to the side yard of the appeal property, the dormer would not be
widely seen from within the conservation area and would not obstruct key viewsof the
traditional cottages and houses which are characteristic of the area.
 The inspector stated that where the dormer would be visible, its size, design
 The Inspector highlighted that the whilst the SPD does exclude box rooms and
studies as habitable rooms, it is only supplementary guidance and given an increase
in home working, particularly as a result of the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic, they
saw no reason as to why a study should not be considered a habitable room in which
future occupants are likely to spend considerable amounts of time.
 With no window to serve the proposed study/store room, the inspector stated that the
space would have no independent source of daylight and no outlook, resulting in a
dark, oppressive and claustrophobic environment for its future occupiers.
 As condition requiring an obscure glazed window would not address the lack of
outlook, the inspector concluded that it would fail to overcome the harm identified and
would not provide acceptable living conditions for future occupants, with regard to
daylight and outlook. Contrary to policy DM1 of the Adopted Core Strategy and
National Planning Policy Framework.
 Other matters included the appellant’s assertions that the overall design of the
proposal would be proportionate and in kepping with the overall character of the

Page 78

immediate area, and would provide additional accommodation to meet family needs.
The inspector considered that these matters did not outweigh the harm identified.

Page 79

Report to Planning and Licensing Committee
5th November 2020
Councillor Carol Wardle,
Cabinet Member for
Planning, Development
& Housing
Mubeen Patel
Public

Date of Meeting
Portfolio

Report Author
Public/Private Document
Application: 19/01259/ADV

Township: Rochdale

Appeal Reference: APP/P4225/H/20/3254886

Ward: Castleton

Decision level: Delegated

Site Address: 776 Manchester Road, Castleton OL11 3AW
Proposal: Upgrade of existing 48 sheet advert to support digital poster and display of
logo panel
Applicant: Clear Channel UK
Agent: GL Hearn
Planning Inspectorate Decision: Appeal Allowed – 17th September 2020












The above application was approved by the Council. Condition 8 of the approval stated that
display on the advertisement shall not change more than once every 30 seconds. The
appeal was to vary the above condition and proposed that the display should not change
more than once every 10 seconds, rather than every 30 seconds.
The Council in making its decision argued that research indicates digital roadside advertising
is not inherently unsafe but should be operationally managed in accordance with site specific
constraints of the location and that controls over the use of digital adverts should follow the
best practice guidelines and should be secured by special condition, with more careful
management required in higher risk locations.
Durban Street which is the closest side street off Manchester Road leads directly to St
Edwards Primary School. As such this part of Manchester Road is extremely busy during
morning rush hour and after school from both cars going to drop off/ pick children, and from
parents and school children walking to go to school/go home. A pedestrian island is also
located in front of the signage on Manchester Road which is used by school children and
parents to cross, and therefore distraction from changeovers could lead to collision and
possible injury.
However, the inspector views that the bulk of journeys are very likely to be at speeds of at
least 20 mph. At travel speeds lower than this, drivers would see more changes over this
same distance, but they would also be moving at lower speed which can reduce the risk of
accident or at least its severity.
Although the inspector agrees that a condition controlling the length of each display is
necessary and reasonable given the site’s position and the nature of the digital display, he
goes on to state that ‘even so, the length of change imposed is not necessary given the
highway conditions in the area despite the site’s proximity to the primary school.
The Inspector views that the 10 second limitation would not compromise driver’s attention for
long periods of time or necessarily increase the potential for accidents to occur and
expresses that while this may be in line with the industry approach, he has considered the
appeal on its own planning merits.

Page 80

